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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Mayor and Members of the Gity Council
of the City of Carroliton
Carrollton, Kentucky

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmentat activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Carrollton, Kentucky, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which coflectively comprise the City of Carroliton, Kentucky's basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Carroliton, Kentucky, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City of Carrollton, Kentucky and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinicns.

Responsibifities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to svaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Carrollton, Kentucky's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve
months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly
thereafter.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance s a
high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

in performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, we:

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Members — Private Companies Practice Section of the American Institute of CPAs Page 1
Members — Kentucky Society of Certified Public Accountants



The Mayor and Members of the City Council
of the City of Carrollton

Carrollton, Kentucky

Page Two

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements {Continued)

+ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Carrollton, Kentucky's
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, thare are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt
about the City of Carrollton, Kentucky's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable peried of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and analysis on
Pages 3 through 10, and other required supplementary information on pages 64 to 69 in the table of contents be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Suppiementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City of
Carroliton, Kentucky's basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor governmental fund financial statements. the enterprise
fund schedules listed in the table of contents as other supplemental information and scheduie of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirementis for Federal Awards are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining nonmajor governmental fund financial statements, the
enterprise fund schedules listed in the table of contents as other supplemental information, and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 10, 2023, on our consideration of
the City of Carroliton, Kentucky's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and net to provide an opinicn on
the effectiveness of the City of Carrollton, Kentucky's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Carrollton, Kentucky's
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

R ausor, happ t Weoolo PSC,
RAISOR, ZAPP & WOODS, PSC

Certified Public Accountants
Carrollton, Kentucky

March 14, 2023

Raisor, Zapp & Woods, PS.C,
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis City of Carrollton, Kentucky
June 30, 2022

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Carrollton's financial performance provides an overview of the City's financial
activities for the year ended June 30, 2022. Please read it in conjunction with the City's financial statements, which begin

onpage 11.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

- The City’s capital outlay includes the following:
—  $83,352 for a voice recording system
—  $55,415 for multiple ergonomic workstations,
—  $6,165 for three ergonomic chairs,
—  $8,280 on 2 post vehicle lift.
—  $1,000 for a County Clipper snow blade.
—  $5,322 for 2 turnout gear sets.
—  $3,374 for a John Deere 8’ snow pusher,
—  $65,707 for playground equipment.
—  $116,917 for a new bathroom at Point Park.
—  $15,688 for an arboretum at Point Park.
—  $29,179 for 206/208 Main Street property,
—  $68,825 for a new salt bin.

- City’s total net position of its governmental funds increased by $957,924,

- In the City's business-type activities, charges for services increased compared to prior fiscal year-end from
$37,228,506 to $68,984,810, respectively. Expenses increased compared to prior fiscal year-end from $37,566,398 to
$68,937,885, respectively. The increases in services and expenses are a result from significant price increase in natural gas
costs compared to prior fiscal year-end.

- Capital outlay expended through the City’s business-type activities includes the following:
—  $2,922,762 for natural gas extension 20/20 project
—  $240,220 for sewer extensions Exit 34, Obe Cook Road, Hardy Creek, Lock Road
—  $96,251 for gas installation hardware
—  $67,433 for water installation hardware
—  $65,390 for sewer lift station pumps
—  $50,053 for mini excavator
—  $34,391 for Ford F150XL truck
- $28,300 for Vac truck pump/boring machine
—  $21,166 for Bio-Tower pump sewer treatment plant
—  $20,500 for Ice-Tee project water treatment plant enhancement
—~  $19,567 for airstriper heat trace
—  $14,669 for pumps water treatment plant and pumping station
—  $13,051 for Cobalt mower
—  $7,426 for Mortz 201t trailer
—  $6,000 for Scada equipment
—  $4,975 for sewer installation hardware

— City’s total net position of its business type activities increased by $3,219,635.

Page 3



Management’s Discussion and Analysis City of Carrollton, Kentucky
June 30, 2022

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report contains a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities
(on pages 11-13) provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and present a long-term view of the City's
finances. Fund financial statements start on page 14. For governmental activities, these statements reflect how these
services were financed and what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements report the City's operations in more
detail than the government-wide statements by including information about the City's most significant funds.

Reporting on the City as a Whole:
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

Our analysis of the City as a whole begins on page 5. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities provide
information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way to show if the City is better off or worse off as a result
of the year's activities. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, All of the
current year's revenues and expenses are taken info account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The Statement of Net Position - the difference between assets and deferred outflows or resources and liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources - is one way to measure the City's financial health. Increases or decreases in the City's net position -
over a period of time - is one indicator of whether the City's financial health is improving or deteriorating. Other
nonfinancial factors such as changes in the City's property tax base, the condition of its infrastructure assets, and advances
in the City’s utility services must be considered to assess the overall health of the City.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into two kinds of activities,

*  Governmental activities - Most of the City's basic services are reported here, including the police, fire, general
administration, public works, and code enforcement. Property taxes, franchise fees, insurance premium taxes, and
state and federal grants finance these activities.

*  Business-type activities - The City's proprietary fund, Carrollton Utilities, which charges fees to customers to fund
the City's water, sewer, and natural gas systems, are reported here.

Reporting the City's Most Significant Funds:

Fund Financial Statements

Our analysis of the City's major funds begins on page 8. The fund financial statements begin on page 14 and provide
detailed information about the most significant funds. Some funds are required to be established by State law, like the
Municipal Street Aid Fund and the L.G.E.A. Fund. The City's two kinds of funds - governmental and proprictary - use

different accounting approaches.

*  Governmental funds - The City's services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows
in and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for carry-over funds for the next budget
year. These funds are reported on the modified accrual accounting basis, which measures cash and all other
financial assets that can be readily converted to cash.

*  Proprietary funds - Business Type-Activities. The City reports the Carrollton Utilities as a proprietary fund. The

City charges customers for the services of gas, water and sewer provided through the Carrollton Utilities. These
are reported on the accrual accounting basis and are included in the Statement of Net Position on page 11.

Page 4



Management’s Discussion and Analysis City of Carrollton, Kentucky

June 30, 2022

THE CITY AS A WHOLE

The City's combined net position increased from $48,703,554 (as restated) to $52,881,113. The net position and net
expenses of governmental and business-type activities show two different results. Our analysis betow focuses on the net
position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the City’s governmental and business-type activities.

TABLE 1
NET POSITION
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE TOTAL
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENT

20/21 2022 20/21 2022 20/21 21/22
CURRENT AND OTHER ASSETS $ 6783313 § 8394228 § 13.540,605  § 19,074,505 § 20323918  § 27.468.733
CAPITAL ASSETS 6.481,873 6,125406  41.803.167 46,232,938 48.285.040 52,358,344
TOTAL ASSETS $ 13,265,186 $ 14,519,634 $ 55343772 $ 65307443  § 68,608,958  § 79.827.077
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES ¢ 475577 § 1305425 § 1599330  § 1682060 $ 3074907 % 2.987.485
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 5,567,054 4,713,034 11,410,589 11,812,450 16,977,643 16,525,484
CURRENT LIABILITIES 243,214 345,998 4,748,446 10,279,158 4,991,660 10,625.156
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 5810268 § 5059032 § 16,159,035 § 22.09L,608 $ 21,969,303  $ 27,150,640
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 328927 § 1,206,535 $ 682,081 $ 1576274 $ 1,011,008 % 2,782,809
NET POSITION:
NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS  § 6,478,129 $ 6125406 § 37,893,092  § 39,520,084 § 44371221  § 45645490
RESTRICTED 31,315 35,106 602,839 986,525 634,154 1.021.631
UNRESTRICTED 2,092,124 3,398,980 1,606,055 2,815,012 3,698,179 6,213,992
TOTAL NET POSITION 8,601,568 9559492 $ 40,101,986 ¥ § 43.321,621 $ 48,703,554 % $ 52,881,113

*As reslated

Net position of the City's governmental activities increased by 11.14% (89,559,492 compared to $8,601,568 in the prior
year.) Unrestricted net position — the part of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints
establish by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirements — changed from $2,092,124 at June 30, 2021
to $3,398,980 to June 30, 2022.

The net position of our business-type activities increased by $3.2M or 8.1% compared to prior year from $40,101,986 to
$43,321,621, respectively. Unrestricted net position changed from $1,606,055 fiscal year-end 2021 to $2,815,012 fiscal
year-end 2022, Net position attributable to the merger with West Carroll Water District was $1,982,885 as referenced in
Note 4.G. There was also a prior period adjustment to net position due to fixed asset removals of $19,012 as referenced in
Note 4.F. The City generally can only use the unrestricted net assets to finance the continuing operations of the gas, water
and sewer operations.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

City of Carroliton, Kentucky

June 30, 2022
TABLE 2
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE TOTAL
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENT
20721 21/22 2021 21/22 20/21 21722
REVENUES:
PROGRAM REVENUES:

CHARGES FOR SERVICES $ 1311940 § 1,412,290 § 37,163,137 § 68,813,032 $ 38475077 §70,225322
GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS 475,074 1,250,938 - 475,074 1,250,938
GENERAL REVENUES:

PROPERTY TAXES 482,084 499,338 - - 482,084 499,338

FRANCHISE TAXES 397,005 448,641 . - 397,005 448,641

PEAK ANNUAL RETURN 1,779,798 1,948,790 - - 1,779,798 1,948,790

INSURANCE LICENSES 645,435 682,787 - - 645,435 682,787

OTHER GENERAL REVENUES 16,584 9,303 125,681 199,305 142,265 208,608
TOTAL REVENUES: 5 5,107,920 § 6,252,087 § 37,288,818 § 69,012,337 § 42,396,738  $ 75,264,424
PROGRAM EXPENSES: )

GENERAL GOVERNMENT $ 680,190 § 750,727 § - 8 - % 680,190 § 750,727
PUBLIC SAFETY 2,774,521 2,513,182 - - 2,774,521 2,513,182
PUBLIC WORKS 1,074,037 1,022,219 - - 1,074,037 1,022,219
CODE ENFORCEMENT 52,550 118,528 - - 52,550 118,528
HEALTH & SANITATION 356,378 366,985 - - 356,378 366,985
PARKS & RECREATION 252,023 308,643 - - 252,023 308,643
COMMUNITY SERVICE 4,600 5,285 - - 4,600 5,285
LOSS ON DISPOSITION OF ASSETS (28,170) 208,594 (10,000) - (38,170) 208,594
GAS - - 32,741,057 64,256,850 32,741,057 64,256,850
WATER - - 1,722,881 2,020,836 1,722,881 2,020,856
SEWER - . 2,780,004 2,660,179 2,780,004 2,660,179
MANAGEMENT SERVICES - - 322,456 - 322,456 -
TOTAL EXPENSES: $ 5,166,129 § 5,294,163 § 37,556,398 § 68,937,885 § 42,722,527 $74,232,048
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER

58,2 ; 3 :

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES $ (58,209) $ 957,924 $  (267,580) § 74452 $  (325,789) $ 1,032,376
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS - - - 3,145,183 - 3,145,183
CHANGE IN NET POSITION $  (58,209) § 957,924 §  (267,580) $ 3,219,635 § (325,789) & 4,177,559

The City’s total revenues increased by $32,867,686. The total cost of all programs and services increased by $31,509,521.
Our analysis below separately considers the operations of governmental and business-type activities.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis City of Carrollton, Kentucky
June 36, 2022

Governmental Activities

Revenues for the City's governmental activities increased $1,144,167 due mainly to revenues received associated with
PEAK, insurance licenses, rentals at Two Rivers Campground and American Relief Plan Act Fund Proceeds. Total expenses
increased by 2.48 percent ($128,034). The increase in net position for governmental activities was $957,924 in FY 2021-
2022. This compares to a $58,209 decrease in net position in FY 2020-2021.

The City budgeted the following capital outlay projects:

$158,012 for new equipment for Dispatch
$75,000 for sidewalks

$12,500 new equipment for Public Works
$100,000 for Public Works capital outlays

- The City budgeted a 3% increase in departmental salarics

- The City continued with the self-insured health insurance pian along with several other Northern Kentucky
government entities with a budgeted 0% premium increase and offered several different options to the employees
with different deductibles. Also, if employees chose a Healthy Plan their plan would be provided at no cost to
them when choosing certain plans.

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $5,085,569 compared to $53,194,299 last year. As shown in the
Statement of Activities on pages 12-13, the amount that our taxpayers financed for these activities was $1,412,290, and
some of the cost was paid by other governments and organizations that subsidized certain programs with grants and
contributions of $1,250,938. Overall, the City’s governmental program revenues, including intergovernmental aid and fees
for services increased from $1,787,014 to $2,663,228.

Table 3 presents the cost of each of the City's departments - General Government, Fire Department, Police Department,
Public Works Department, and Sanitation. The net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the City's taxpayers
by each of these functions.

TABLE 3
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
TOTAL COST NET COST
OF SERVICES OF SERVICES
20121 21/22 20721 21/22

GENERAL GOVERNMENT $ 680,190 §$ 750,727 $ (495461) §$ 446,585
FIRE DEPARTMENT 264 462 230,560 (210,815) (217,654)
POLICE DEPARTMENT/DISPATCH 2,510,059 2,282,622 (1.612,750) (1,509,862)
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 1,074,037 1,022,219 (998,644) (944,2656)
CODE ENFORCEMENT 52,550 118,528 (52,550) (118,528)
SANITATION 356,378 366,985 46,237 45,796
ALL OTHERS 256,623 313,028 {83,302) (124,413)
TOTALS: $5,194,299 $5085569  $(3,407,285) §$(2,422 341)
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis City of Carrollton, Kentucky
June 30, 2022

Business-type Activities

Total revenues of the City’s business type activities (see table 2) increased $31.7M or 85.08% and total expenses increased
$31.3M or 83.6% in FY 21-22 as compared to FY 20-21 attributed to significant increases in gas prices. In the prior fiscal
year, management services related to West Carroll Water District were recorded separately, since merging the operations
of West Carroll Water District into the business type activities the revenues and expenses associated with these are
operations are reported in Water — Charges for Services and Expenses, as applicable.
TABLE 4
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

PROGRAM REVENUES -

CHARGES FOR SERVICES EXPENSES
20121 21122 20121 21/22
GAS $ 33,020,227 $ 64,308,584 $ 32,741,057 $ 64,256,850
WATER 1,229,632 1,831,792 1,722,881 2,020,856
SEWER 2,656,200 2,672,856 2,780,004 2,660,179
MANAGEMENT SERVICES 248,178 - 322,456 -
TOTALS: $ 37,163,137 _$ 68,813,032 §$ 37,566,398 $ 68,937,885

THE CITY'S FUNDS

As the City completed fiscal year 2021-2022, its governmental funds (as presented in the balance sheet on page 14) reported
a combined fund balance of $6,224,278 which represents an increase of $1,972,752 from last year’s total of $4,251,526.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The City Council revised the General Fund budget one time for fiscal year ending June 30, 2022, This amendment accounted
for increases in revenues from property taxes, licenses/permits, and charges for services. In addition, it accounted for the
increases in all departments as a result of annual salary increases.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

At the end of June 30, 2022, the City had $52,358,344 (net of accumulated depreciation) invested in capital assets including
buildings, utilities, police, fire, and public works equipment, park facilities, city streets, and water, sewer, and gas lines.
(See table below.) This represents a net increase of $4,092.316 or 8.48%.

TABLE 5
CAPITAL ASSETS AT YEAR-END
(NET OF DEPRECIATION)
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTALS
20/21 21/22 20121 21122 20121 21/22

LAND $ 1,114,102 ¢ 1,077,982 § 2,073,878 $ 2092733 $ 3,187,980 $ 3,170,695
BUILDINGS & IMPROVEMENTS 2,940,442 2,750,271 5,985,648 5719114 8,926,090 8,469,385
EQUIPMENT 1,201,709 1,197,103 2,268,109 1,929,726 3,470,818 3,126,829
INFRASTRUCTURE 1,225,620 1,100,070 30,926,919 32,316,069 32,152,539 33,416,139
CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS 547613 4,175,296 547 613 4,175,296
TOTALS: $ 6481873 $ 6,925406 $ H ,803,167 $ 45,232,038 $ 48,285,040 $ 52,358,344

*Begiming 21/22 balances were adjusted to account for (he West Carroll Water District assets acquired in the merger on July 1, 2021,
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

City of Carrollton, Kentucky

This year's major additions included:

$68,825 for a new salt bin.

$2,922,762 for natural gas extension

$240,220 for sewer extensions

$168,658 hardware for gas, water, sewer installations
$65,390 for sewer lift station pumps

$50,053 for mini excavator

Debt

At year-end, the City had zero in capital lease compared to $3,744 last year as shown in Table 6 for

$144,932 for new equipment for Dispatch; a voice recording system and ergonomic workstations and chairs.
$191,109 for improves at Point Park included playground equipment, a bathroom and an arboretum.
$12,654 on equipment for Public Works included a 2-post vehicle lift, snow blade, and John Deere snow pusher.

one outstanding capital lease for police equipment that has been paid in full. No notes payable or bonds payable were

outstanding in the governmental funds.

TABLE 6
OUTSTANDING DEBT AT YEAR-END

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTALS
20721 21122 20/21 21722 20/21 21/22
CAPITAL LEASE $§ 3744 S - 8 - $ 3,744 % -
NOTES PAYABLE - - 4,577,860 4,064,015 4,677,860 4,064,015
BONDS PAYABLE - - - 2,186,106 - 2,186,106
TOTALS: $ 3744 % - % 4577860 $ 6250121 $ 4,581,604 $ 6,250,121

The City’s long-term debt for its business-type activities consisted of the following notes payable to the Kentucky

Infrastructure Authority:

$43,491 for a 30-year loan secured by sewer revenues with a final maturity in June 2032.

$74,577 for a 20-year loan secured by sewer revenues with a final maturity in December 2022,
$1,050,321 for a 20-year loan secured by sewer revenues with a final maturity in December 2026.
$478,235 for a 20-year loan secured by sewer revenues with a final maturity in December 2032,
$999,262 for a 30-year loan secured by water revenues with a final maturity in December 2044,
$1,016,618 for a 30-year loan secured by water revenues with a final maturity in June 2046.
$401,511 for a 30-year loan secured by water revenues with a final maturity in December 2046.

The City’s bonds payable for its business-type activities consisted of the following bonds payable:

— $1,990,000 for a S-year 5% Combined Utility System Revenue Bond with a final maturity in June 2027.

— $196,106 Series 2022 Bonds Payable Original Issue Bond Premium

Other obligations of the City represent accrued compensated absences for $140,318 compared to $126,131 last year.

Project Gas Supply Credits Payable of $1,579,944 represents amounts that will be payable to long-term gas supply contract
customers as a credit to their industrial gas bill as terms and conditions of those long-term gas supply contracts are met in
future years.

Page 9



Management’s Discussion and Analysis City of Carrollton, Kentucky
June 30, 2022

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2022-2023 budget. One of
those factors is the economy - specifically the Consumer Price Index (CPI). The CP1 was reported at 8.3% according to the
Commonwealth of Kentucky. Council decided to allocate a $1.25/ per hour increase for departmental salaries.

The City chose not to raise the property tax rate by 4% as allowed per KRS 132.027. In FY 21-22 the property tax rate was
$.289 per $100 of assessment. The FY 22-23 includes the following capital investments: new sidewalks for $50,000, one
new police cruiser for $43,305, new recreational equipment for $50,000, and $100,000 on Public Works equipment.

As for the City’s business-type activities, the CU Commission continues to monitor the highly volatile natural gas prices.
Unfortunately, continued supply-chain issues and rising prices across the board will necessitate an increase in water and
sewer rates for the next fiscal year. The Commission and the utility staff are working tirelessly to cut costs in as many
ways as possible.

Fiscal Year 2022 substantial changes included the acquisition of the West Carroll Water District and the 20/20 Gas
project. This upcoming fiscal year will not have the large impact projects but will nevertheless have many smaller
important projects. The Commission is working to establish an up-to~date asset management plan and planning projects
that replace, repair, or rehabilitate some of Carrollton Utilities’ most important and oldest assets.

This would include several important natural gas regulator stations that serve the City of Carrollton, Kings Ridge, and the
Carroll Co. High School. On the water side, CU is focusing on extending the life of the water treatment plant and
ensuring that all the fire hydrants in our system are in good working order. Carrollton Utilities will be receiving some
funding through the KY Cleaner Water program to do improvements on the Westside as well as replace a historically
leaky line along KY 36 outside of Prestonville. The wastewater improvements will focus on pump stations that don’t
have second or back-up pumps available and improvements to the WWTP that will help keep the plant clean.

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general overview of the
City's finances and to show the City's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or
need additional financial information, contact the City Treasurer's Office at 750 Clay Street, Carrollton, Kentucky 41008.

MELINDA WRIGHT TERRY A. ROACH
City Clerk-Treasurer Carrollton Utilities General Manager
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CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2022

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash, Including Time Deposits $ 5,861,551 $ 8,445,322 $ 14,306,873
Interest Receivable - 13,371 13,371
Accounts Receivable {Net) 306,410 7,886,805 8,303,315
Other Receivables - 2,061,742 2,061,742
Due from Gther Governments 177,583 413,562 591,145
Due from Gther Funds 1,307,134 (1,307,134) -
Current Portion - Interlocal Receivable - 7,090 7,080
Prepaid Expense 12,397 36,900 49,297
Total Current Assets $ 7,665,075 $ 17,667,758 3 25,332,833
Noncurrent Assets
Restricted Assets
Cash, Including Time Deposits $ - $ 1,346,700 $ 1,346,700
Due from Other Funds 729,153 (729,183) -
Other Receivables - Noncurrent - 618,300 618,300
Interlccal Receivahle - 170,900 170,900
Capital Assets (Net) 6,125,406 46,232,938 52,358,344
Total Noncurrent Assets § 5,854,559 3 47 639,685 $ 54 494 244
Total Assets $ 14,519,634 $ 65,307,443 5 79,827,077
DEFERRED OUTFIL.OWS OF RESOURCES
Attributable to Employer Pension Plan $ 661,532 $ 803,606 $ 1,555,138
Attributable to Employer OPEB Plan 643,893 788,454 1,432,347
Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources 5 1,305,425 & 1,682,080 $ 2,987,485
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 224,677 $ 7,785,253 $ 8,009,930
Accrued Compensated Absences 80,726 10,185 90,911
Accrued Wages 38,850 85,391 125,241
Sales Tax Payable 745 36,518 37,264
Project Gas Supply Credits Payable - 850,791 850,791
Retainage & Contractors Payabls - 617,849 617,849
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Accrued Interest - 40,037 40,037
Bonds & Notes Payablg - 853,133 853,133
Total Current Liabilities $ 345,998 3 10,279,158 $ 10,625,156
Noncurrent Liabilities '
Accrued Compensated Absences 3 15,309 $ 34,008 % 49,407
Project Gas Supply Credits Payable - 729,153 729,153
Bonds & Notes Payable - 5,398,988 5,396,088
Net Pension Liability 3,613,093 4,151,018 7,764,111
Net OPEB Liability 1,084,632 1,246,135 2,330,767
Noncurrent Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Customer Depcsits Payable - 255,058 255,058
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 3 4,713,034 3 11,812,450 $ 16,525,484
Total Liabilities $ 5,059,032 $ 22,091,608 $ 27,150,640
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Atfributable to Employer Pensicn Plan $ 656,797 $ 881,258 $ 1,538,055
Attributable to Employer OPEB Plan 549,738 595,016 1,244,754
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 1,206,535 $ 1,576,274 b 2,782,809
NET POSITICON :
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 6,125,406 3 30,520,084 $ 45,645,490
Restricted for:
Debt Service - 986,525 986,526
Other Purposes 35,106 - 35,106
Unrestricted 3,398,980 2,815,012 6,213,992
Total Net Position B 9,569,492 5 43,321,621 $ 52,881,113

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statoments Page 11



Functions / Programs
Governmental Activities

General Government
Public Safsty

Fire Department

Dispatch

Police Department
Public Works
Sanitation
Code Enforcement
Parks & Recreation

Community Service
Tetal Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities
Gas

Water
Sewer

Total Business-type Activities

Total Government

CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Program Revenues

Charges For

Operating
Grants and

Capital
Grants and

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
$ 750,727 $ 193,128 3 818,801 $ 185,583
230,560 1,906 11,000 -
677,920 423,623 - 96,140
1,604,702 205,540 A7,457 -
1,022,219 - 77,954 -
366,985 412,781 - -
118,528 - - -
308,643 175,312 - -
5285 - 14,203 -
$ 5085569 $ 1,412,290 $ 969,215 $ 281,723
$ 64,256,850 $ 64,308,584 $ - $ 1,076,008
2,020,856 1,831,792 - 1,982,886
2,660,179 2,872,656 - 86,289
$ 68,937,885 $ 68,813,032 3 - b 3,145,183
$ 74,023,454 $ 70,225,322 $ 969,215 $ 3,426,906
General Revenues
Taxes:
Property Taxes
Franchise Taxes
PEAK Returns

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Insurance Licenses

Unrestricted Investment Income
Restricted Investment Income

Misce

llaneous

Gain (Loss) on Disposition of Assets
Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position - July 1

Net Position - June 30

Page 12



Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

$ 445,585 $ - $ 446,585
(217,854) - {217,654)
(158,157) - (158,157)
{1,351,708) - (1,351,705)
{944,285) - (944,265)

45,796 - 45796
(118,528) - (118,528)
{133,331) - (133,331)

8,918 - 8,918
$ {2,422,341) $ - $ (2,422,341)
3 - $ 1,127,742 $ 1,127,742
- 1,793,822 1,793,822

- 98,766 08,766

$ - $ 3,020,330 $ 3,020,330
$ (2,422,341) $ 3,020,330 $ 597,989
$ 499,338 $ - $ 499,338
448,641 - 448,641
1,948,790 - 1,848,790
682,787 - 682,787

9,303 24,110 33,413

- 3.417 3,417

- 171,778 171,778
(208,594) - (208,594)

$ 3,380,265 5 198,305 $ 3,679,570
3 957,924 $ 3,219,635 $ 4,177,559
$ 8,601,568 3 40,101,986 & 48,703,554
$ 9,659,492 $ 43,321,621 3 52,881,113

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements



CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY

ASSETS
Cash, Including Time Deposits
Accounts Receivable: (Net of Allowance
for Uncollectibles)
Insurance Licenses
Business Licenses
Ad Valorem Tax
Franchise Fess
Miscellaneous
Due from Other Governments
Due from Other Funds
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Sales Tax Payable
Accrued Compensated Absences
Accrued Wages
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
KY 911 Services Board (CMRS) Grants
PEAK 2021 Annual Return

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2022

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Other Total
General Governmental Governmental

Fund Funds Funds

$ 5813692 $ 47,859 $ 5,861,551
186,104 - 186,104
17,198 - 17,198
419 - 419
79,965 - 79,965
19,579 - 19,579
169,454 8,129 177,583
285,606 - 285,605
$ B572016 3 55,688 $ 6,628,004
$ 224 677 ) - $ 224 677
745 - 745
80,726 - 80,726
39,850 - 39,850
$ 345,698 $ - $ 345,098
3 41,676 $ - $ 41,676
16,052 16,052
$ 57,728 $ - 3 57,728
$ - $ 35,106 $ 35,105
735,388 - 735,388
- 20,882 20,882
5,432 902 - 5,432,902
$ 8,168,290 $ 55,088 $ 6,224,278
$ 6,572,016 $ 55,088 $ 6,628,004
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CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNNENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2022

Total Governmental Fund Balances

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds. Total capital assets $13,595,075 net of
accumulated depreciation $7,469,669.

Revenues that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as

revenues in the funds. Amounts due on such revenues but not received subsequent

te year end within 60 days have been reported as receivable.in the Statement of
Net Pesition.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
peried and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds. Long-term liabilities
at year-end consist of;

Accrued Compensated Absences $
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability

15,309

3,613,093
1,084,632

Expenditures that have used current financial resources but have been made for
goods and services to be received subsequent to year end have heen reported as a
prepaid expense in the Statement of Net Position.

Deferred Cutflows of Resources:
Attributable to CERS Employer Pension Plan 3
Attributable to CERS Employer OPEB Plan

661,532
643,893

Deferred Inflows Of Resources:
Adttributable to CERS Employer Pension Plan $
Alftributable to CERS Employer OPEB Plan

656,797
549,738

Net Position of Governmental Activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

$

6,224,278

6,125,408

1,811,555

(4,713,034)

12,397

1,305,425

(1,206,535)

$

9,569,492
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CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

REVENUES

Taxes:

Property Taxes

Franchise Taxes

Insurance Taxes"

Bank Deposits
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental Revenues
PEAK Revenue
Charges for Sanitation Services
Recreation Facility Services
CRMS/Landline E-911 Revenues
Contributions
Interest Revenue
Miscellangous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Administrative
FPublic Safety
Fire Department
Emergency Dispatch
Police Department
Public Works
Sanitation
Parks and Recreation
Community Service
Code Enforcement
Capital Outlay
Cebt Service - Principal

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from Asset Sales
Total Cther Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year

Fund Balances - End of Year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Other Total
General Governmental Governmental

Fund Funds Funds
$ 499,338 3 - $ 499,338
408,663 - 408,663
682,787 - 682,787
39,978 - 39,978
107,812 - 107,812
1,801,107 83,167 1,984,274
2,217,956 - 2,217,956
412,781 - 412,781
175,312 - 175,312
110,254 - 110,254
- 14,203 14,203
9,073 230 9,303
61,051 - 61,051
$ 6,626,112 3 97,600 $ 6723712
$ 588,994 3 - 3 688,994
183,827 - 183,827
571,265 - 571,265
1,467,075 - 1,467,075
732,474 79,580 812,054
366,985 - 366,985
175,430 - 175,430
- 5285 5,285
112,875 - 112,875
463,101 - 463,101
3,744 - 3,744
$ 4,765770 b 84,865 $ 4,850,635
$ 1,880,342 L 12,735 $ 1,873,077
$ 99,675 3 - 3 99,675
3 99,675 $ - $ 99,675
$ 1,860,017 $ 12,735 $ 1,972,752
4,208,273 43,253 4,251,526
$ 6,168,290 3 55,988 $ 6,224,278
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CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets are allocated
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

Capitalized Expenditures
Depreciatiocn Expense

Repayment of capital lease obligation principal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in
the Statement of Net Position.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported
as expenditures in the governmental funds until paid.

Compensated Absences

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Expenditures in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances that are for goods and services not yet received
are not reported as expenses in the Statement of Activities.

Governmental funcls report city pension contributions as expenditures.
However in the Statement of Activities, the cost of pension benefits earned
net of employee contributions is reported as pension expense.

Governmental funds report city OPEB contributions as expenditures.
However in the Statement of Activities, the cost of OPEB benefits earned
net of employee contributions is reported as OPEB expense.

Grant Funds received by the City aftributable to CMRS reimbursable grant expenditures {$215,508)
and relief funds arising from eligible reimbursable coronavirus expenditures ($28,527)
recegnized as income under the accrual basis in the previous fiscal year, reduce
current year income in the Statement of Activities.

Grant Funds due the City attributable to CMRS reimbursabie grant expenditures ($41,676)
not available within 60 days, are recognized as deferred inflows in the Funds
Statements. In the Statement of Activities, these transactions are recognized
as revenue under the accrual basis.

Governmental Funds only repert the disposal of assets to the extent proceeds are received
from the sale. In the Statement of Activities, a gain or loss is reported for each disposal
This is the difference in the amount of the gain/loss vs. the proceeds raceived
onh asset disposals.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $

See accompanying notes to the hasic financial statements

1,972,752

463,101

(511,299)

3,744

5403

{269,166)

1,535

(150,391)

(47,027)

(244,135)

41,676

(308,269)

957,924
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CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
June 30, 2022

Carrollton
Utilities
Enterprise Fund
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash, Including Time Deposits $ 8,445 322
Interest Receivable 13,371
Accolunis Receivable (Net) 7,998,805
Other Receivables - 2,061,742
Due from Other Governments 413,562
Current Portion - Interlocal Receivable 7,090
Prepaid Expense 36,900
Total Current Assets $ 18,974,892
Noncurrent Assets
Restricted Assets
Cash, Including Time Deposits $ 1,346,700
Other Recelvables - Noncurrent 618,300
Interlocal Receivabla 170,800
Capital Assets (Net) 45,232 938
Total Noncurrent Assets $ 48,368,838
Total Assets $ 67,343,730
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOQURCES
Attributable to Employer Pension Plan $ 893,606
Attributable to Employer OPEB 788,454
Total Deferred Outflows $ 1,682,060
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 3 7,785,253
Due to Other Funds 1,307,134
Accrued Compensated Absences 10,185
Accrued Salaries, Wages & Benefits 85,391
Sales Tax Payable 36,519
Project Gas Supply Credits Payable 850,791
Retainage & Contractors Payable 617,849
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Ascrued Interest Payable 40,037
Bonds & Netes Payable 853,133
Total Current Liabilities 3 11,586,292
Nencurrent Liabilities
Accrued Compensated Absences $ 34,098
Project Gas Supply Credits Payable 728,153
Due to Other Funds 729,153
Bonds & Notes Payable 5,386,988
Net Pension Liability 4.151,018
Net OPEB Liability 1,248,135
Noncurrent Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Customer Deposits Payable 255,058
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 3 12,541,603
Total Liabilities $ 24,127,895
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Adtributable to Employer Pension Pian $ 881,258
Attributable to Employer OPEB 656,016
Total Deferred Inflows $ 1,576,274
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 38,520,084
Restricted for:
Debt Service 986,525
Unrestricted 2,815,012
Total Net Position $ 43,321,621

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements Page 18



CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services;

Gas Utility Charges (Nat)

Water Utility Charges (Net)

Sewer Utility Charges (Net)

Connection Fees & Service Charges
Total Charges for Services

Miscellaneous Revenues
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Cost of Goods Sold
Operation & Maintenance
General & Administrative
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses
Net Operating Income
Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses):
Interest Income
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses)
Income (Loss) Before Contributions
Capital Contributions
Change in Net Position

Net Position - July 1 - Restated - See Note 4F

Net Position - June 30

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Carrollton
Utilities
Enterprise Fund

$ 64,235,331
1,769,122
2,430,604

377,975

$ 68,813,032
171,778

$ 68,984,810

$ 61,813,255

2,230,470
2,727,183
2,029,610

$ 68,800,518
$ 184,292
$ 27,527
(137,367)

& {109,840)
$ 74,452
3,145,183

$ 3,219,635

40,101,986

3 43,321,621
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CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers
Payments to Suppliers
Payments to Employees
Receipts of Customer Meter Deposits
Refunds of Customer Meter Deposits
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital Contributions
Purchases of Capital Assets

Proceeds from Capital Debkt Bond Issue Net of Issuance Costs

Principal Paid on Capital Debt
Interest Paid on Capital Debt

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Principal Received on Interlocal Debt
Interest and Fees Received on Interlocal Debt
Purchase of Certificates of Deposits
Interest Received

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances-July 1

Balances-June 30

Balances
Per June 30, 2022
Statement of

Carrollton
Utilities
Enterprise Fund

$ 64,308,424
(60,468,557)
(1,790,476)
129,353

(95,250)

$ 2,081,494

$ 773,649
(3,277,329)
2,137,312
(513,846)

(53,113)

$ (933,327)

$ 7.037
1,868

{3,500,000)

12,445

3 (3,478,650)

$ (2,330,483)

8,622,605

$ 8,292,022

Balances
Per June 30, 2022
Statement of
Cash Flows

Cash

Time Deposits
Resfricted Cash
Restricted Time Deposits

$ 4,945,322

1,346,700

Total

Net Position
$ 4,945 322
3,500,000
1,346,700
$ 9,792,022

$ 6,202,022

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

(Continued)
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CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense
Pension Expense
CPEB Expense

Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Receivables, Net (Increase) Decrease
Other Receivables (Increase) Decrease
Prepaid Expenses (Increase) Decrease
Accounts and Other Payables Increase (Decrease)
Due to Other Funds Increase (Decrease)
Customer Meter Deposits Payable Increase (Decrease)
Accrued Expenses Increase (Decrease)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

NONCASH CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
At June 30, 2022, Carrollton Utilities:

Carrollton
Utilities
Enterprise Fund

$ 184,292

2,029,610
105,422
44,087

(4,696,044)
247,334
5,973
4,297,635

(185,620)
34,103
14,702

$ 2,081,494

- had $617,849 ouistanding retainage and contractors payable related to the 2020 Gas Line Expansion

- had $22,874 of capital assets in accounts payable

- through the July 1, 2021 merger with West Carroll Water District, acquired Net Capital

Assets of $2,549,408 - See Note 4.G.

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Implementation of New Accounting Principles
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CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of entity: The City of Carrollton, Kentucky is a "home rule” city with population of approximately 4,000. It is
operated under Kentucky Revised Statutes mayor/council form of government. The entity serves approximately 5,000
water, sewer and gas customers. The city compiies with generally accepted aceounting principles (GAAP). GAAP includes
all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The accounting and reporting framework
and the more significant accounting principles are discussed in subsequent subsections of this Note.

1.A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY
The City's financial reporting entity comprises the following:
Primary Governrnent: City of Carrollfon
Blended Component Units: Utilities Commission of Carrollion

In determining the financial reporting entity, the City complies with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 61, "The
Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus,” and includes all compenent units of which the City appointed a voting majority
of the units’ board; the City is either able to impose its will on the unit or a financial benefit or burden relationship
exists.

Blended Component Units

Blended component units are separate entifies that meet the component unit criteria described above and whose
governing body is the same as or designated by the City Council or the compenent unit provides services entirely
to the City. These component units’ funds are blended into those of the City's by appropriate activity type.

Component units that are blended into the reporting activity types of the City’s report are presented below:

Component Unit  Brief Description/Inclusion Criteria Reporting
Utilities The Commission operates a combined utilities system to provide Enterprise Fund
Commission of residents of the City and certain outlying areas with natural gas, water,

Carrollton (CU) sanitary sewers, and sewage treatment facilities. The City’s mayor

appoints the Commissioners and also designates management of the
Commission. The City Council approves the utility rates charged by the
Commission. The long-term debt of the Commission is backed by the full
faith and credit of the City and is, therefore, a contingent liability to the
general government.

The Cities of Carrollton, Glencoe, Sanders, Sparta, Owenton,
Prestonville, Worthville, Campbellsburg, and Ghent and the Counties of
Carroll, Gallatin, Owen, and Henry entered into interlocal agreements for
the construction, operation and maintenance of a regional sewer facility.
Under these agreements the City of Carrollton, through Carrollton Utilities,
owns and operates the system. In recognition of Carrollton’s ownership
of the completed facility, and its operation of same through its Enterprise
Fund {Carrollton Utilities), the transactions of the regional sewer are
included in the financial statements as part of that fund.

Joint Venture:

The Carroll County/E-911 Advisory Committee was established under an interlocal agreement between Carroll
County Fiscal Court and the City of Carroliton in March 2018 to operate the E-311 Dispatch. The Committee has
ten members. Under the interlocal agreement, Carroll County and the City of Carrollfon share the costs of
administering the £-911 Dispatch equally. Carroll County’s telephone 911 surcharge tax and E-911 wireless tax
are placed in a restricted fund held by the Carroll County Treasurer and distributed equally to the general funds of
Carroll County and the City of Carrollton bi-annually on January 15 and July 15 of each year. Dispatchers and other
personnel employed by the £-911 system are City of Carrollton employees. Equipment is owned and maintained
jointly. Fiscal court remits its share of expenses monthly. The Carroll County/E-911 Advisory Committee does not
produce separate financial statements.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
1.A.  FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY (Continued)

Excluded from the reporting entity:

Carrollton Housing Authority — This potential component unit has a separate appointed board and provides services
to residents, generally within the geographic boundaries of the City. It is excluded from the repoerting entity because
the City does not have the ability to exercise influence or control over its daily operations, approve budgets or
provide funding.

Carroliton-Carroll County, Kentucky Recreation and Tourism Commission — This potential component unit has been
appointed jointly by the area governments’ governing bedies. It is an independent unit that selects management
staff, establishes budgets and controls all aspects of its daily activities.

Public Energy Authority of Kentucky (PEAK)} — formerly PEAK, Inc. — This potential component unit is a Kentucky
nonprofit corporation created by the cities of Carrollton and Hendersen, Kentucky, under the provisions of Kentucky
Revised Statutes, Sectlons 273.161 through 273.380, Sections 65.210 through 65.300 and Section 58.180, as
amended, and the Public Energy Authority of Kentucky, Inc. interlocal Agreement dated March 1, 2003. Effective
September 5, 2008 under the Natural Gas Acquisition Authority Act of the State of Kentucky, PEAK Inc. was
converted into the Public Energy Authority of Kentucky (PEAK). The newly created entity assumed all assets,
liabilities, and on going operations of PEAK Inc. PEAK was created for the purposes of providing gas acquisition,
delivery and other related services to the Cities and other public agencies that may become signatories to the
Interlocal Agreement (the Members). PEAK is excluded from the reporting entity because of the following: (i) It
has a 4-member Board of Directors, which is appointed by the Membership; (i} PEAK is a separate legal entity;
and (iii) 1t is fiscally independent in that its budgets and charges are determined without substantive member

approval.

1.B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Governmeni-wide Financial Statements:

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the reporting government as a
whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between
governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole or

in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. This is the
same approach used in the preparation of the proprietary fund financial statements but differs from the manner in
which governmental fund financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements therefore
include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide
statements and the statements for governmental funds.

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each segment of the business-type activities of the City and for each function or program of the City's
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically asscciated with a service, program or
department and are therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid
by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program and grants and contributions that are restricted
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues are presentad as general revenues of the City, with certain limited exceptions. The comparison
of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each business segment or governmental
function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City.

Page 24



CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
1.B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION {Continued)

Fund Financial Statements:

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be separate
accounting entities. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditure/expenses. Funds are organized into three
major categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the
governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is consideraed major if it is the primary operating fund of the City
or meets the following criteria:

a, Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise
fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type; and

b. Total assets, liahilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental or enterprise
fund are at least & percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:
Governmental Funds

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City and always classified as a major fund. It is used to
account for all activities except those legally or administratively required to be accounted for in other funds.

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted
fo expenditures for certain purposes.

Capital Project Funds

The Capital Project Funds are used to account for resources restricted for the acquisition or construction of specific
capital projects or items.

Proprietary Fund

Enterprise Fund

Enterprise Funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public. These activities
are financed primarily by user charges and the measurement of financial activity focuses on net income
measurement similar to the private sector. The reporting entity includes the Carrollifon Utilities Commission

Enterprise Fund.

Fiduciary Funds (Not included in government-wide statements)

None

Major and Nonmajor Funds

The funds are further classified as major or nonmajor as follows:

Page 25



CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
1.B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

Major and Nonmajor Funds {(Continued)

Fund Brief Description
Major:
General Fund See above for description.

Proprietary Fund:
Carrollton Utilities Accounts for activities in providing water, wastewater, and gas
services to the public.

Nonmajor:

Special Revenue Funds:

L.G.E.A. Fund Accounts for revenues and expenditures from the state mineral
severance fax.

Municipal Road Aid Accounts for revenues and expenditures from the state gasoline
tax.

Shop With A Cop Fund Accounts for contributions and expenditures associated with the

Police Department's community service program for
underprivileged children.

1.C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "which” transactions are recorded within the various financial
statements. Basis of accounting refers to “when” transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus
applied.

Measurement Focus

On the government-wide Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, both governmental and
business-like activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined in item b. below.

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus or the "economic resources’
measurement focus is used as appropriate:

a. All governmental funds utilize a “current financial resources” measurement focus. Only current financial
assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating statements present
sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund
balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

b. The proprietary fund utilizes an "economic resources” measurement focus. The accounting objectives of
this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net position (or cost
recovery), financial position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent)
associated with their activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net position.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1.C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued)

c. Agency funds are not involved in the measurement of results of operations; therefore, measurement focus
is not applicable to them,

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the financial
statements. In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, both governmental and
business-like activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset
used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabllities resulting from exchange and exchange-like
fransacticns are recognized when the exchange takes place.

fn the fund financial statements, governmental funds and agency funds are presented on the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when "measurable and
available.” Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available means
collectible within the current period or within sixty days after year end. Expenditures {including capital outlay) are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation bond principal and interest which

are reported when due,

All proprietary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

1.D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND EQUITY

Cash and Investments

For the purpose of the Statement of Net Position, “cash, including time deposits” includes all demand, savings
accounts, and certificates of deposits of the City. For the purpose of the proprietary fund Statement of Cash Flows,
“cash and cash equivalents” include all demand and savings accounts, and certificates of deposit or short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Investments are carried at fair value. Fair value is based on quoted market price.

Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may result in amounts
owed between funds. Those related to goods and services type transactions are classified as "due to and from
other funds.” Short-term interfund locans are reported as “interfund receivables and payables.” Long-term interfund
loans (noncurrent portion) are reported as “advances from and to other funds.” Interfund receivables and payables
between funds within governmental activities are eliminated in the Statement of Net Position.

Receivables

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received.
Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts
recelvable. Major recelvable balances for the governmental activities include insurance license taxes, franchise
taxes, and amounts due from other governments. Business-fype activities report utility billing and gas activities as
their major receivables.

Page 27



CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1.D.  ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND EQUITY
{Continued)

Receivables (Continued)

in the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals such as
insurance license tax, franchise tax, and grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues since they are usually
both measurable and available. Nonexchange transactions collectible but not available are deferred in the fund
financial statements in accordance with modified accrual, but not deferred in the government-wide financial
statements in accordance with the accrual basis. Interest and investment earnings are recorded when earned only
if paid within 60 days since they would be considered hoth measurable and available. Proprietary fund material
receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yef received. Ultility accounts receivable, gas supply
project receivables, and construction grants comprise the majority of proprietary fund receivables. Allowances for
uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable.

In the proprietary fund financial statements, Interlocal Receivables are recorded for amounts due under Interlocal
Agreements with other governmental entities who were subrecipients of loan proceeds from the Kentucky
Infrastructure Authority. Such proceeds were used by those entities to fund various improvement projects.

Inventories

The cost of consumable materials and supplies on hand are immaterial to the financial statements. The proprietary
fund reports materials on hand at year-end as part of canstruction in process. At June 30, 2022, there was $186,890
included in construction in process.

Fixed Assets

The accounting treatment over property, plant, and equipment (fixed assets) depends on whether the assets are
used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the
government-wide or fund financial statements.

Government-wide Statements

In the government-wide financial statements, fixed assets are accounted for as capital assets. All fixed assets are
valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable and updated for additions and
retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.
The City maintains a capitalization threshold of one thcusand dollars (proprietary fund $5,000) with the exception
of computers, digital cameras and real property for which there is no threshold. Improvements are capitalized; the
cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life
are not capitalized. Estimated historical cost was used to value the majority of the assets acquired prior to July 1,

1989.

Prior to July 1, 2002, governmental funds’ infrastructure assets were not capitalized. Only major general
infrastructure assets acquired, significantly reconstructed, or significantly improved in fiscal years ending after June
30, 1980 have been included. These assets have been valued at estimated historical cost.

Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of Activities, with
accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position. Depreciation is provided over the assets’
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of
asset is as follows:

- Buildings 25-40 years
- improvements 20-25 years
- Machinery and Equipment 4-20 years
- Utility System 20-60 years
- Infrastructure 25 years
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1.D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND EQUITY
{Continued)

Fixed Assets (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, fixed assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as capital
outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Fixed assets used in proprietary fund operations
are accounted for the same as in the government-wide statements.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets include cash of the proprietary fund that is legally restricted as to use. The primary restricted
cash assets are related to debt obligation accounts and utility meter deposits.

Capital Lease Expenses
Proprietary Fund capital lease fees are expensed as incurred.

Long-term Debt

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in governmental fund
operations or praprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial

statements.

All lang-term debts to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are reported as liabilities in the
government-wide statements. The long-term debt consists primarily of notes payable and accrued compensated

absences.

Long-term debts of governmental funds are not reported as liahilities in the fund financial statements. The debt
proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principal and interest reporiad as expenditures.
The accounting for the proprietary fund is the same in the fund statements as it is in the government-wide

statements.

Original issue debt premiums are amortized as a component of interest expense over the life of the associated debt
using the interest method. Bonds are issued at a premium when the stated rate is higher than the market rate.
Unamortized premiums are reported as an addition to the face amount of the debt in the Statement of Net Position.

Dabt Issuance Costs are expensed as incurred.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Kentucky Public
Pension Authority’s County Employees’ Retirement System {CERS), and additions to/deductions from CERS’s
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CERS.

Post Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Kentucky Public Pension
Authority’s County Employees’ Retirement System (CERS), and additions to/deductions from CERS’s fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CERS.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources are not assets or liabilities; revenues or
expenses. Rather, they represent resources or the use of resources related to future periods.
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1.D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND EQUITY
(Continued)

Compensated Absences

Under the City’s policies, employees accumulate vacation time. Unused vacation time cannot be carried into the
next calendar year. A portion of accumulated sick leave is available to employees at retirement. Employees are
not paid for accumulated sick leave upon other termination. The liability for these compensated absences is
recorded as long-term debt in the government-wide statements. The current portion of this debt is estimated based
on historical trends. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report only the compensated
absence liability payable from expendable available financial resources, while the proprietary funds report the
liability as it is incurred.

Equity Classifications
Government-wide Statements
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

a. Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or
other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

b. Restricted net position — Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by (1) external
groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

¢. Unrestricted net position — All other net position that does not meet the definition of “restricted” or “nat
investment in capital assets.”

Fund Statements
Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified as follows:

a. Nonspendable fund balance —~ amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as inventory) or are required
to be maintained intact (such as the corpus of an endowment fund).

b. Restricted — amounts that can be used only for specific purposes because of (a) constitutional provisions
or enabling legislation or (b) externally imposed constraints.

¢. Committed — amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, using its highest level of
decision-making authority; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose
unless the government takes the same highest-level action to remove or change the constraint.

d. Assigned — amounts intended to be used for specific purposes but that do not meet the criteria to be
classified as restricted or committed. This is the residual fund balance classification for all governmental
funds except the general fund.

The City Coungil is the City's highest level of decision-making authority. Formal approval of a motion made
at a public meeting of the City Council is necessary to establish (and medify or rescind) a fund balance
commitment or assignment.

e. Unassigned - this is the residual classification for the general fund.

Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
1.E. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND EXPENSES

Revenues — Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions — Revenues resulting from exchange transactions, in which
each party receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On
a modified accrual basis, revenues are recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and
available. Available means that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be
collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the City, available means
expectad to be received within sixty days of the fiscal year-end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City receives value without directly giving equal value in return, include
property taxes, insurance license taxes, grants, entitements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from
property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Insurance license taxes are recognized
to the extent known in the perfod for which the insurance company reports the fee collected. Revenue from grants,
entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.
Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the rescurces are required to be
used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the City must provide local
resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided
to the City on a reimbursement basis. Cn a modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must
also be available before it can be recognized.

Property Tax

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied on October 1 and are
due and payable at that time. All unpaid taxes levied October 1 become delinquent January 1, of the following year.

Property taxes receivable and deferred revenues are recognized when an enforceable legal claim has arisen. -

Property tax revenues are recoghized when they bacome avallable. In the fund financial statements, property taxes
are recorded as revenue in the period levied to the extent they are collected within sixty days after year end. An
allowance for uncollectible delinquent property taxes is provided to the extent that their collectability is improbable.
Due to the immaterial amount of any additional property taxes receivable after the sixty-day period, no additional
accrual is made in the government-wide financial statements.

Insurance License Tax

The City levies an 8% (eight percent} license fee upon each insurance company which issues insurance policies
on the lives of persons residing within the corporate limits of the City of the first year's premiums actually collected.

The City levies an 8% (eight percent) license fee upon each insurance company which issues any insurance policy
which is not a life insurance policy of the premiums actually collected for policies on risks located within the corporate
limits of the City. The tax imposed upon premium recsipts is not levied upon premiums received for insuring
employers against personal injuries to their employess, or death caused thereby, under the provisions of the
Workers Compensation Act, or health insurance provided for state employees under KRS 18A.225(2). Insurance
license fees are payable to the City within 30 (thirty) days after the end of each calendar quarter.

PEAK Project Returns

In consideration of the City’s participation in the long-term gas supply projects through the Public Energy Authority
of Kenfucky, the City receives monthly and annual returns. The annual refurn is based on deemed excess revenues
of the project, total gas supply sold to all project participants, and the amount of gas purchased by the City. Annual
refurns are not guaranteed. PEAK revenues also include payments due on project contract amendments in the
general fund.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods and/for services. It also includes all revenue and expenses not related to capital and related
financing, noncapital financing, or investing activities.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1.E. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND EXPENSES (Continued)

Expenditures/Expenses

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for both governmental and
business-type activities,

In the fund financial statements, expenditures are classified as follows:

Governmental Funds-By Character: Current (further classified by function)
Debt Service
Capital Outlay

Proprietary Fund-By Operating and Nonoperating

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial resources. Proprietary funds
report expenses relating to use of economic resources.

The City adheres to the use restrictions established by Kentucky Revised Statutes when expenses are incurred for
which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available. The City has no policy defining which resources
{restricted or unrestricted) to use first. Restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned amounts are considered to
have been spent when an expenditure is incurred for the purpose of such classifications.

Interfund Transfers

Permanent reallocation of resources between funds of the reporting entity are classified as interfund transfers. For
the purposes of the Statement of Activities, all interfund transfers between individual governmental funds have heen

eliminated.
1.F. IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87

The City adopted the provisions of GASBS No. 87, Leases. The abjective of this statement is to better meet the
information needs of financial statement users by establishing uniform accounting and financial reporting
requirements for leases, improving the comparability of financial statements among governments that have entered
into leases, and enhancing the understandability, reliability, relevance, and consistency of infermation about leases.

NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

By its nature as a local governmental unit, the City and its component unit are subject to various federal, state, and local
laws and contractual regulations. An analysis of the City’s compliance with significant laws and regulations and
demonstration of its stewardship over City resources follows.

2.A. FUNDACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS

The City complies with all state and local laws and regulations requiring separate accounting or use of separate
funds. Those funds requiring separate accounting used by the City include the following:

Fund Required By
Municipal Road Aid State Law
L.G.EEAF. State Law

2.B. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, LAWS AND REGULATIONS

In accordance with state law, all uninsured deposits of municipal funds in financial institutions must be secured with
acceptable collateral valued at the lower of market or par. Acceptable collateral includes certain U.S. Government
or Government Agency securities, certain State of Kentucky or political subdivision debt obligations, or surety
bonds. As required by the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989, all financial
institutions pledging collateral to the City must have a written collateral agreement approved by the board of
directors or loan committee.
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2.B. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, LAWS AND REGULATIONS {Continued)

KRS 66.480 authorizes the City to invest in obligations of the United States and its agencies and instrumentalities
including repurchase agreements, through sources including national and state banks chartered in Kentucky,
obligations and contracts for future delivery backed by the full faith of the United States or its Agency, certificates
of deposit and interest bearing accounts in institutions insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation
and other investments described therein provided that approved securities are pledged to secure those funds on
deposit in an amount equal to the amount of those funds. The City may also invest in mutual funds meeting the
requirements of the statute.

2.C. REVENUE RESTRICTIONS

The City has various restrictions placed over certain revenue sources from state or local requirements. The primary
restricted revenue sources include:

Revenue Source Legal Restrictions of Use
Municipal Road Aid Street & Alley Purposes
County Dispatch Revenue E-911 Emergency Services Purposes
Water, Sewer, and Gas Revenue Debt Service and Utility Operations
Law Enforcement Grants Police Pregrams/Salaries
Local Government Economic Assistance Funds Approved Expenditures
State Fire Aid Fire Equipment Expenditures
KY Department of Local Government —
Corconavirus Relief Fund Reimbursement of Eligible Costs
Owen Co Fiscal Court — Community Development Sanitary Sewer Self-Help Project
Block Grant
Kentucky 911 Services Board Grants {CMRS) Recorder Upgrade/Console Upgrades
Federal Economic Development Administration Approved Grant Expenditures-Gas Infrastructure

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the City complied, in all material respects, with these revenue restrictions.
2.D. DEBT RESTRICTIONS AND CONVENANTS

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority Maintenance, Replacement Reserve — Loans AO1-03, B99-03, AO5-01,
B08-06, F11-15, F13-007, and F14-013.

Funded Maintenance, Replacement Reserve Accounts are required by the City's Assistance Agreements AO1-03,
B99-03, AO5-01, B08-08, F11-15, F13-007, and F14-013, with the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority. Under the
agreements, the City must deposit into these accounts $8,000 annually, $236 semi-annually, $30,000 annually,
$2,250 annually, $5,100 annually, $4,100 annually and $2,400 annually, until the amounts accumulated on deposit
are equal to $80,000, $5,610, $300,000, $22,500, $51,000, $41,000 and $24,000, respectively. The reserve
accounts for agreements A01-03, B89-03, AC5-01, B08-06, F11-15, F13-007, and F14-13 are fully funded. The
reserve for B08-06, F11-15, F13-007, and F14-013 were fully funded upon inception.

City of Carrollton, Kentucky Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series of 2022 — Bond Fund and
Debt Reserve Fund

Bond Fund — Monthly, on or before the 20" day of each month, sums no less than one-sixth (1/8) of the interest,
and one-twelfth (1/12) of the principal of all bonds maturing on the next succeeding due date, is required to be

deposited into a special fund identified as the “2022 Bond Fund”. The required monthly transfers for June 30,
2022 were made as required.

Debt Reserve Fund — An account identified as the “2022 Debt Reserve Fund” was fully funded upon inception.
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CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022

NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS

3.A. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

City of Carrollton, Kentucky's policies regarding deposits of cash are in accordance with the state statutes.
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be returned
to it. As of June 30, 2022, $9,149,426 of the City's deposits were covered by federal depository insurance and
$6,709,121 respectively, were collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institution's agent in the
City's name.

Cash and cash equivalents and investments at June 30, 2022, consisted of the foliowing:

Governmental Activities

Total Bank Total Carrying
Type of Deposits Balance Value
Demand Deposits $ 4,022 $ 4,022
Time/Savings Deposits 6,108,389 5,855,824
Total Deposits $ 6,112,411 $ 5859,848
Business-type Activities
Total Bank Total Carrying
Type of Deposits Balance Value
Demand Deposits $ 5780,424 $ 5,825,060
Time/Savings Deposits 3,965,712 3,965,712
Total Deposits $ 9,746,136 $ 9,790,772
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Reconcilement to Statement of Net Position
Cash, including Time Deposits $ 5,861,551 $ 8,510,402 $14,371,953
Restricted Cash, including Time Deposits - 1,281,620 1,281,620
$ 5861,551 $ 9,792,022 $15,653,573
Total Carrying Value $ 5,859,846 $ 9,790,772 $15,650,618
Plus: Cash on Hand 1,705 1,250 2,955
$ 5,861,551 $ 0,792,022 $ 15,653,573
3.B. RESTRICTED ASSETS
Restricted assets consist of the following:
Cash
KIA Loan Reserve Accounts $ 560,850
USGS Deposits 65,080
Series of 2022 Revenue Bond Reserve Accounts 465,712
Customer Deposits 255,058
Total $ 1,346,700

In addition to these restrictions, the Utility Commission has internally designated demand deposits of $560,000 as
reserved to mitigate the risk associated with industrial sales.
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CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022

NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (Continued)
3.C. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable of the business-type activities consists of utilities revenue receivable. Accounts receivable of
the governmental activities consists of franchise tax (26%) insurance licenses {61%), business licenses {6%) and
other (7%) receivables. Receivables detail at June 30, 2022, is as follows:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Accounts receivable $ 316,887 $ 8,015,034 $ 8,331,921
Allowance for doubtful accounts (10,477) (18,129} (28,606)
Net accounts receivable 3 306,410 3 7,996,905 $ 8303315

3.0. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Other Receivables of the business type activities consists of 99.7% gas supply contract payments receivable from
PEAK. Of the $2,672,086, $2,053,785 will be received within one year. The remaining $618,300 will be received
over the remaining life of the TEAC gas supply project.

3.E. INTERLOCAL RECEIVABLE

The City of Carroliton f/b/o Carroliton Utilities entered into an interlocal agreement with Carroll County Water District
under which Carroll County Water District was the subrecipient of loan proceeds from the Kentucky Infrastructure
Authority with loan forgiveness provisions to fund various system improvement projects. The City of Carroliton /b/o
Carroilton Utilities was the recipient of the loan proceeds. Carrollton Utilities was also the entity overseeing the
engineering and construction contracts, and other general costs associated with the project. Carroll County Water
District, under the interlocal agreement, has agreed to pay Carrolliton Utilities for the portion of the debt associated
with improvements made to their distribution system. An interlocal receivable is presented in the Statement of Net
Position to represent the amount due from Carroll County Water District to the City of Carroliton ffb/o Carrollton
Utilities as follows:

Original Interlocal
Balance Agreement
of KIA Debt Net Loan Balance
Project: District: L.oan Forgiveness To District June 30, 2022
Carrofl County Interconnect Carroll County Water $ 301,721 $ 75,430 § 226,291 5 177,990

3.F. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Interfund balances reported in the financial statements at June 30, 2022, consisted of the following individual fund
receivables and payables:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount Purpose
General Fund Enterprise Fund $ 2,036,287 Sanitation Receipt Reimbursements/
- PEAK Returns
Total $ 2,036,287

Of the $2,036,287 due from the City's proprietary fund to the General Fund, $4,307,134 is anticipated to be received
within one year, The remaining $729,153 is subject to the policies and contracts surrounding long term gas
contracts and will be paid to the General Fund as these conditions are met. Separately, a project gas supply credit
payable has been recorded in the amount of $729,153 to reflect the estimated percentage portion payable to long-
term gas supply contract customers subject to contract terms and conditions.

Page 35



CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2022

NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (Continued)

3.G. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022, was as follows:

Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2021 Additions Disposals June 30, 2022
Governmental Activities:
Land $ 1,114,102 § 33,860 {70,000y $ 1,077,962
Buildings & Improvements 4,719,092 206,146 (288,500) 4,636,738
Machinery & Equipment 3,668,173 216,455 - 3,882,628
Infrastructure 3,991,107 6,640 - 3,997,747
Construction in Process - - - -
Totals at Historical Cost 3 13,490,474 § 483,101 (358,500 & 13,695,075
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings & Improvements $ 1,778,650 % 158,048 50,231 $ 1,886,467
Machinery & Equipment 2,484,464 221,061 - 2,685,525
Infrastructure 2,765,487 132,190 - 2,897,677
Total Accumulated Depreciation $ 7,008,601 $ 511,299 (50,231 $ 7,469,669
Govemnmental Activities - Capital
Assets, Net 3 6,481,873 & (48,198) (308,269) % 6,125,406

Depreclation Expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:

General Gowernment $ 40,757
Public Safety
E311 Dispatch 64,324
Fire Department 42,739
Police Department 57,757
Public Works 40,435
Parks & Recreation 132,662
Code Enforcement 660
Infrastructure (included with Pubfic Works) 131,965
Total Depreciation Expense 3 511,299

Land and Construction in process are assets which are not depreciated. $2,644,477 of depreciable assets are fully

depreciated.
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CITY OF CARRCLLTON, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2022

NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (Continued)

3.G. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2021* Additions Disposals June 30, 2022
Business-type Activities:

Land & Right of Ways 5 2,002,733 §$ - % - 5 2,092,733
Structures & Improvements 9,439,308 - - 9,439,308
Distribution System 58,484,327 138,737 - 58,623,064
Wells 815,727 - - 815,727
Plant, Machinery & Equpment 8,320,317 160,387 (38,801) 8,441,903
Construction in Process 564,446 3,610,850 - 4,175,296

Tetals at Historical Cost 3 79,716,858 $ 3,908,574 % (38,801) % 83,588,031
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Structures & Improvements $ 3,453,660 $ 266534 $ - 0§ 3,720,194
Distrbution System 25,372,413 1,236,184 - 26,608,597
Wells 488,192 25,933 - 514,125
Plant, Machinery & Equipment 6,050,019 500,959 (38,801) 6,512,177

Total Accumulated Depreciation 5 35,364,284 § 2,029610 % (38,801) % 37,365,083
Business-type Activities Capital Assets, Nat $ 44 352 674 % 1,880,364 § - % 46,232,938

*Beginning Balances reflect prior period adjustment of $19,079 and the acquisition of West Carroll Water District assets.

Depreciation Expense was charged to the Business-type Activities as follows:

Gas 5 640,231
Water 410,585
Sewer 978,754
Total Depreciation Expense $ 2,029,610

Land, right of ways, and construction in process are capital assets not being depreciated. $11,658,191 of

depreciable assets are fully depreciated.

3.H. LONG-TERM DEBT

The reporting entity's long-term debt is segregated between the amounts to be repaid from governmental activities
and amounts to be repaid from business-type activities.

Governmental Activities:

Capital Lease Obligation:

Police equipment lease - $19,376 through Axon Enterprises, Inc. Terms are; 5 years; non-interest bearing, secured
by the underiying equipment. Initial payment of $4,400; subsequent annual payments of $3,744. Maturity,

September, 2021,

Accrued Compensated Absences:
Current Portion
Noncurrent Portion
Total Accrued Compensated Absences

$ 80,726
16,309
$ 96,035
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022

NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (Continued)
3.H. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Business-type Activities:

As of June 30, 2022, the long-term debt payable from proprietary fund resources consisted of the following:
Notes Payable;

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority represents a 30 year loan
secured by sewer revenues. Interest is charged at 1.6% per
annum. The original principal balance was $112,200. Semi-
annual payments with final maturity June 1, 2032. $ 43,491

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority represents a 20 year loan
secured by sewer revenues. |Interest is charged at the rate of
1.8%. The original principal balance was $2,518,301. Semi-
annual payments with final maturity December 1, 2022. 74,577

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority represents a 20 year loan
secured by sewer revenues. Interest is charged at the rate of
1.0%. The original principal balance was $4,288,600. Semi-
annual payments with final maturity December 1, 2026. 1,050,321

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority represents a 20 year loan
secured by sewer revenues. Interest is charged at the rate of
1.07%. The original principal balance was $867,091. Semi-annual
payments with final maturity December 1, 2032. 478,235

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority represents a 30 year loan
secured by water revenues. Interest is charged at 1.00% per
annum. In addition, a loan servicing fee of .25 percent of the
annual outstanding loan balance is payable to the authority as a
part of each interest payment. The original principal balance was
$1,977,731, reduced 35% by principal forgiveness of $692,206.
Semi-annual payments with final maturity December 1, 2044, 999,262

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority represents a 30 year loan
secured by water revenues. Interest is charged at .75% per
annum. In addition, a loan servicing fee of .25 percent of the
annual outstanding loan balance is payable to the authority as a
part of each interest payment. The original principal balance was
$1,657,988, reduced by 25% principal forgiveness of $414,497.
Semi-annual payments with final maturity June 1, 2046. 1,016,618

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority represents a 30 year loan
secured by water revenues. Interest is charged at .75% per
annum. [n addition, a loan servicing fee of .25 percent of the
annual outstanding loan balance will be payable to the authority as
a part of each interest payment. The original principal balance was
$963,931, reduced by 50% principal forgiveness of $481,966.

Semi-annual payments with final maturity December 1, 2046. 401,511
Total Notes Payable $ 4,064,015
Current Portion $ 444 853
Noncurrent Portion 3,619,162
Total Notes Payable $ 4,064,015
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June 30, 2022
NOTE 3. DETAIL NOCTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (Continued)
3.H. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Business Type Activities {Continued)

Bonds Payable:

$1,990,000 City of Carroliton, Kentucky Combined LHility System
Revenue Bonds, Series of 2022, interest is due semi-annuaily
beginning December 1, 2022 and principal amounts are due
annually beginning June 1, 2023; interest rate 5% for the life of the

bonds maturing June 1, 2027, $ 1,990,000
Total Bonds Payabie $ 1,990,000
Current Portion 3 345,000
Noncurrent Portion 1,645,000
Total Bonds Payable $ 1,990,000
Series of 2022 Bonds Payable Original Issue Premium:
Current Portion $ 63,280
Noncurrent Portion 132,826
Total $ 196,106
Accrued Compensated Absences:
Current Portion 3 10,185
Noncurrent Portion 34,098
Total $ 44,283

Changes in Long-term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022:

Balance Balance Current
July 1, 2021 Additions Retirements June 30, 2022 Portion
Type of Debt
Governmental Activities
Capital Lease Obligation B 3744 % - $ 3,744 $ - % -
Accrued Compensated Absences 80,720 15,315 ~* - 96,035 80,726
Total General Long-term Debt [ 84,464 § 15,315 $ 3,744 3 96,035 § 80,726
Business-type Activities
Note Payable $ 4577860 3 - $ 513,845 $ 4,064,015 % 444,853
Bonds Payable - 1,990,000 - 1,990,000 345,000
Bonds Payable Original lssue Premium - 223,047 26,941 196,106 63,280
Accrued Corrpensated Absences 45,411 - 1,128 * 44,283 10,185
Total Enterprise Fund Debt $ 4,623,271 $ 2,213,047 $ 541,914 [ 6,294,404 § 863,318

* Accrued Compensated Absences additions and
retirements are presented as net changes,
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NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (Continued)
3H. LONG-TERM DEBT {Continued)
Description of Debt Activity:

Business-type Activities

Notes Payable to Kentucky Infrastructure Authority

On October 18, 2002, Carrollton Utilities closed a $112,200 loan with Kentucky Infrastructure Authority that provided
financing for the extension of sewer service to industrial sites on U.S. Highway 42, The first amortized payment
commenced on December 1, 2002,

On March 19, 2003, Carrollton Utilities closed a $2,518,301 Kentucky Infrastructure Authority loan that provided
financing for the Regional Sewer Project. The first amortized payment commenced on June 1, 2003.

In March, 2010, Carrollton Utilities closed a $4,288,600 Kentucky Infrastructure Authority loan that provided
financing for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Project. The first amortized payment commenced on June 1, 2007.

In April, 2013, Carrollton Utilities closed a $867,091 Kentucky Infrastructure Authority Loan that provided financing
for the Eagle Creek Sewer Extension Project. The first amortized payment commenced on June 1, 2013.

In 2015, Carrollton Utilities closed a $1,977,731 Kentucky Infrastructure Authority loan that provided financing for
the Countywide Underserved Project under which improvements were made to the distribution systems of both
Carroliton Utilities and West Carroll Water District. The loan contained a principal forgiveness clause in the amount
of thirty-five percent (35%). An interlocal receivable from the West Carroll Water District was recorded in the amount
of $881,877 less the District's share of the principal forgiveness recognized, $308,657, to account for the West
Carroll Water District’s portion of the loan. Principal forgiveness for Carrollton Utilities was recognized in the amount
of $383,549, in prior years. The first amortized payment commenced on June 1, 2015. The interlocal receivable
from West Carroll Water District was eliminated with the merger on July 1, 2021,

On September 30, 2016, Carroliton Utllities closed a loan with Kentucky Infrastructure Authority for $1,657,988.
The loan provided financing for the Carroll County Interconnect Project to provide interconnections between
Carrollton Utilities, Carroll County Water District, and West Carroll Water District. The loan contained a principal
forgiveness clause in the amount of twenty-five percent (25%). An interlocal receivable from the West Carroll Water
District was recorded in the amount of $44,310 less the District's share of principal forgiveness of $11,077. An
interlocal receivable from the Carroll County Water District was recorded in the amount of $301,721 less loan
forgiveness of $75,430. Principal forgiveness of $327,990 for Carroliton Utilities was recognized in prior years. The
interlocal receivable from West Carroll Water District was eliminated with the merger on July 1, 2021.

A loan with Kentucky Infrastructure Authority for $963,931 closed on August 9, 2018. The loan provided financing
for the Focusing on Core Missions Project, to provide distribution system improvements for Carrollton Utilities and
system improvements to Carroll County Water District #1, West Carroll Water District, and Henry County Water
District #2. All interlocal receivables for the Focus Project have been received in full. Principal forgiveness of
$389,516 for Carrollton Utilities was recognized in prior years.

Upon the oceurrence of an event of default, the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority shall be entitled to the appointment
of a receiver of the System and all receipts therefrom. The Kentucky Infrastructure Authority may pursue any
available remedy to enforce payment obligations or to remedy any event of default. In the event that the City
defaults, the defaulting party also agrees to pay the fees of such attorneys and other expenses incurred by the
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority.

Bonds Payable

in March, 2022, the City sold $1,990,000 of City of Carrollton, Kentucky Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds
Series of 2022, issued at a premium of $223,046. The bond proceeds provided financing for the Natural Gas 20/20
Expansion Project to allow Carrollton Utilities to provide expanded capacity required for recent and anticipated
customer expansions.
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NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS {Continued)

3.H.

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

The combined obligations of the outstanding notes at June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Principal Interest Servicing Total Balance at
Fiscal Year Payment Payment Fee Payment End of Year
$ 4,064,015
2022-23 $ 444,853 $ 38,712 9,066 $ 490,631 3,619,162
2023-24 373,908 32,409 8,202 414,519 3,245,254
2024-25 377,576 28,742 7,405 413,723 2,867,678
2025-286 381,280 25,037 6,600 412,917 2,486,398
2026-27 265,382 21,296 5,788 292,466 2,221,016
2027-32 752,751 82,494 23,151 858,396 1,468,265
2032-37 542,705 51,637 15,188 609,530 925,560
2037-42 541,397 28,808 8,648 578,753 384,163
2042-47 384,163 6,429 1,989 392,581 -
$4,064,015 $ 313,564 85,937 $ 4,463,516 $ -
The obligation of the cutstanding bond payable at June 30, 2022 is as follows:
Principal Interest Total Balance at
Fiscal Year Payment Payment Payment End of Year
$ 1,990,000
2022-23 $ 345,000 $ 92,673 $ 437,673 1,645,000
2023-24 380,000 80,667 460,667 1,265,000
2024-25 400,000 61,583 461,583 865,000
2025-26 420,000 41,500 461,500 445,000
2026-27 445,000 20,396 465,396 -
$1,990,000 $ 296,819 $ 2,286,819 $ -

Annual Debt Service Requirements

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal, interest, fiscal charges and servicing fees for
long-term debt as of June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

Interest & Interest &
Fiscal Year Principal Fiscal Charges Principal Fiscal Charges
2022-23 $ S - § 789,853 % 138,451
2023-24 - 753,908 121,278
2024-25 - 777,576 97,730
2025-26 - 801,280 73,137
2026-27 - 710,382 47,480
2027-32 - 752,751 105,645
2032-37 - 542,705 66,825
2037-42 - 541,307 37,356
2042-47 - 384,163 8,418
Total $ $ - $ 6,054,015 $ 696,320
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NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (Continued)
3L INTEREST EXPENSE AND FISCAL CHARGES

Interest expense and fiscal charges for the Enterprise Fund for the year ended June 30, 2022, was $137,367.

3.4, FUND EQUITY

Restricted Net Position

The following table shows the restricted net position as shown on the Statement of Net Position:

Governmental Activities

Activity Restricted by
Other Purposes:
Municipal Road Aid State Law 3 8,646
l.G.E.AF. State Law 26,460
$ 35,106

Business-type Activities

Restricted for Debt Service:
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (KIA) Notes Payable

Cash & Investments $ 1,026,562
Less: Accrued Interest Payable {40,037)
$ 986,525

Fund Balance Classifications

The following classifications of fund balance on the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet (Fund Financial Statement)
have been made:

Restricted for the following purposes under Kentucky Statutes;

Other Governmental Funds:

Municipal Road Aid 3 8,646
LGEAF. 26,460

$ 35,106

Total Restricted Fund Balance $ 35,108

Committed for the following purposes by ordinance, resolution or contract by action of the City Council;

General Fund:
American Rescue Plan Act Funds 3 735,388
$ 735,388

Assigned for expenditures associated with the Shop with a Cop program as constrained to that purpose:

Other Governmental Funds:
Shop with a Cop $ 20,882
Total Assigned S 20,882
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NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (Continued)
3., FUND EQUITY {Continued)

Fund Balance Classifications (Continued)

Unrestricted net position of the governmental funds and proprietary fund was reduced by $197,418 and $149,509
respectively, as a result of the transactions recorded by the City to refiect its proportionate share of the County
Employees Retirement System’s Net Pension and Net OPEB Liabilities. The accounts affected were as follows:

Governmental Funds Proprietary Fund
Increase {Decrease) in Deferred Quiflows of Resources § (170,152) $ 82,730
(Increase) Decrease in Deferred Inflows of Resources (877,608) {894,193)
{Increase} Decrease in Net Pension Liability 606,819 457,605
(Increase) Decrease in Net OPEB Liability 243,623 204,349
Net Decrease in Unrestricted Net Posifion $ {197,418) $ {149,509)

NOTE 4. OTHER NOTES

4A. COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM —~ NON-HAZARDOUS EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN
AND POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFIT (INSURANCE PLAN)

The City of Carrollton participates in the Commonwealth of Kentucky's County Employees’ Retirement System
(CERS) for non-hazardous employees administered by the Kentucky Public Pension Authority (KPPA). Under
revised Statute Section 78.732 and 61.645, the KPPA oversees the administration and operation of the personnel
and accounting systems for the CERS, which is administered by the CERS board.

The responsibility for the general administration and operation of CERS is vested in its Board of Trustees. The
CERS Board of Trustees consists of 9 members. Six trustees are appointed by the governor and three are elected
by CERS members and retired members. Of the six appointed trustees, three must have investment experience
and three must have retirement experience as defined by statute. All appointments by the governor are subject to
Senate confirmation.

The Kentucky Public Pensions Authority issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements
and required supplementary information for CERS’s pension and insurance funds. Additionally, the Kentucky Public
Pensions Authority issues publicly available financial reports that include the Schedules of Employer Allocations
and Pension amounts by Employer, and the Schedules of Employer Allocations and OPEB Amounts, by Employer.
The most recent financial reports, may be obtained on-line as follows:

¢ Kentucky Retirement Systems Audit Report — 2021
https:/kyret.ky.gov/Publications/Books/2021%20Annual%20Report. pdf

» KRS Schedules of Employer Allocations & Pension Amount by Employer for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2021
https:/ikyret.ky.qovw/Employers/GASB/Current%20Audited%20Reports/2021%20GASB%2068%20Proport

ionate%20Share%20Audit%20Report%20with%20Schedules . pdf
+« KRS Schedules of Employer Allocations & OPEB Amounts by Employer for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

https://kyret.ky.gov/Employers/GASB/Current%20Audited % 20Reports/2021%20GASB%2075%20Proport
ionate%20Share%20Audit%20Report%20with%205chedules. pdf
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NOTE 4. OTHER NOTES {Continued)

4.A. COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM — NON-HAZARDOUS EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN
AND POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFIT (INSURANCE PLAN) (Continued)

+ Kentucky CERS GASB 68 Accounting & Financial Reporting for Pensions as of June 30, 2021 (Actuarial

Report)
hitps./fkyret.ky.aov/Employers/GASB/GASBY%2068%20and%2075%20Actuary%20Reports/2021%20GA

SB%2068%20Actuary%20Report% 20CERS . pdf

e Kentucky CERS GASB 75 Accounting & Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than

Pensions as of June 30, 2021 (Actuarial Report)
hitps://kyret.kv.goviIEmployers/GASB/GASBY%2068%20and%2075%20Actuary % 20Reporis/2021%20GA

SB%2075%20Actuary%20Report%20CERS. pdf

Basis of Accounting — CERS's financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan
member contributions are recognized in the peticd in which contributions are due. Employer contributions fo the
plan are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions.
Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with terms of the plan. Premium
payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Administrative and
investment expenses are recognized when incurred.

Method Used to Value Investments/investment Objectives — Investments of the plan are reported at fair value.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Short-ferm investments are reported at cost, which
approximates fair value. Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade-date basis. Interest income is
recorded on the accrual basis. Dividends are recorded on the dividend date. Gain (loss) on investments includes
KRS’ gains and losses on investments bought and sold as well as held during the fiscal year. Investment returns
are recorded net of investment fees.

The investment objectives of the portfolios are to produce results that exceed the stated goals over both short-term
and long-term periods,

s Shorter-Term (5 years and less). The returns of the particular asset classes of the managed funds of the
Systems, measured on an annual basis, should exceed the return achieved by a policy benchmark portfolio
composed of comparable unmanaged market indices.

e Medium-Term (5 fo 30 years): The returns of the particular asset classes of the managed funds of the
Systems, measured on a rolling year basls should exceed the returns achieved by a policy benchmark
portfolio composed of comparable unmanaged market indices and perform above the median of an
appropriate peer universe if there is one,

+ Longer-Term: The fotal assets of the Systems should achieve a return of 6.25% for CERS pension and
insurance plans. This is measured over 30 to 40 years which exceeds the actuarially required rate of
return while also exceeding the return achieved by its total fund benchmark.

Targst Asset Allocation — Pension and Insurance as of June 30, 2021

The long-term expected rates of return were determined by using a building block method in which best estimated
ranges of expected future real rates of return were developed for each asset class. The ranges were combined by
weighting the expected future real rate of return by the target asset allocation percentage. The target allocation
and best estimates of arithmetic real rate of return for each major asset class are summarized in the tables below.
The current long-term inflation assumption is 2.3% per annum.
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Target Long-Term
Asset Allocation Expected Rate of Return
2021 2021

Caombined Equity 53.50% 5.70%-9.70%
Combined Fixed Income 15.00% 2.80%
Private Equity 10.00% 0.00%
Real Return 10.00% 4.55%
Real Esfate 10.00% 5.40%
Cash 1.50% -0.60%
100.00% 5.00%

» The investment portfolio for the Pension Funds reported a net return of 25.00% for the fiscal year 2021
compared to 1.15% return for fiscal year 2020. The investment portfolio for the Insurance Fund
reported a net return of 24.95% for the fiscal year, which was higher than fiscal year 2020 net return of
0.48%. The Investment return was above the 6,25% assumed rate of return.

PENSION PLAN DESCRIPTION - CERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that
covers all regular full-time members employed in non-hazardous and hazardous positions of each participating
county, city, and school board, and any additional eligible local agencies electing to participate in CERS. The plan
provides for retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members. Retirement benefits may be extended to
beneficiaries of plan members under certain circumstances. Prior to July 1, 2009, COLAs were provided annually
equal to the percentage Increase in the annual average of the consumer price index for all urban consumers for
the most recent calendar year, not to exceed 5% in any plan year. After July 1, 2009, the COLAs were limited
to 1.5%. No COLA has been granted since July 1, 2011. The City of Carrollton, Kentucky participates in the non-
hazardous plan.

Benefits provided — CERS provides retirement, health insurance, death and disability benefits to Plan employees
and beneficiaries. Employees are vested in the plan after five years’ service. For retirement purposes, employees
are grouped into three tiers, based on hire date:

" Tier 1 Participation date Before September 1, 2008
Unreduced retirement 27 years service or 65 years old and 4 years service
Reduced retirement Al least 5 years service and 55 years old or 25 years of service
and any age

Tier 2 Participation date September 1, 2008 — December 31, 2013
Unreduced retirement At least 5 years service and 65 years old
or age 57+ and sum of service years plus age equal 87+
Reduced retirement At least 10 years service and 60 years old

Tier 3 Participation date After December 31, 2013
Unreduced retirement At least 5 years service and 65 years old
or age 57+ and sum of service years plus age equal 87+
Reduced retirement Not available

Retirement is based on a factor of the number of years’ service and hire date multiplied by the average of the
highest five years' earnings for Tier 1 and Tier 2. Reduced benefits are based on factors of both of these
components. Participating employees become eligible to receive the health insurance benefit after earning a
minimum months of service credit (120 months for Tier 2 and 180 months for Tier 3).
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Death benefits are provided for both death after retirement and death prior to retirement. Death benefits after
retirement are $5,000 in a lump sum. The beneficiary of a deceased active member is eligible for a monthly benefit
if the member was (1) eligible for retirement at the time of death or, {2) under the age of 65 for non-hazardous
members with at least 60 months of service credit and currently working for a participating agency at the time of
death, or (3) no longer working for a participating agency but at the time of death had at least 144 months of service
credit. If the beneficiary of a deceased active member is not eligible for a monthly benefit, the beneficiary will
receive a lump-sum payment of the member's contributions and any accumulated interest.

Senate Bill 169 passed during the 2021 legislative session increased the disability benefits for certain qualifying
members who become "totally and permanently disabled” in the line of duty or as a result of a duty-related disability.

Contributions — Local Government participating employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined
rate per Kentucky Revised Statute Section 78.545(33). The CERS Board of Trustees establishes the employer
contribution rate each year following the annual actuarial valuation as of July 1 and prior to July 1 of the succeeding
fiscal year for local governments in Kentucky. The Board may amend contribution rates as of the first day of July
of the second year of a biennium, if it is determined on the basis of a subsequent actuarial valuation that amended
contribution rates are necessary to satisfy requirements determined in accordance with actuarial bases adopted by
the Board. Under House BIll 352, the 2020 General Assembly only passed a one year budget for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2021 due to the COVID-19 pandemic crisis. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, participating
non-hazardous employers contributed 24.06% of each employee's creditable compensation. The actuarially
recommended rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 was 26.95%. Administrative costs of KRS are financed
through employer contributions and investment earnings.

House Bill 362 passed during the 2018 legislative session caps CERS employer confribution rate increases up to
12% per year over the prior fiscal year for the period of July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2028.

Non-hazardous smployer contributions for the year ended June 30, 2021, of 24.06% were allocaled 19.30% to
CERS’s pension fund and 4.76% to CERS’s OPEB (health insurance).

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 membership consisted of:
Tier 1:

Plan members who began participating prior to September 1, 2008, are required to contribute 5% non-hazardous,
of their annual creditable compensation. These members are classified in the Tier 1 structure of benefits. Interest
is paid each June 30 on members' accounts at a rate of 2.5%. If a member terminates employment and applies to
take a refund, the member is entitled te a full refund of confributions and interest.

Tier 2:

Plan members who began participating on, or after, September 1, 2008 and before January 1, 2014, are required
to contribute a total of 6% non-hazardous, of their annual creditable compensation. These members were classified
in the Tier 2 structure of benefits. Five percent of the contributions are deposited to the member's account. One
percent of these contributions are deposited to an account created for the payment of health insurance benefits
under 26 USC Section 401(h} in the Pension Fund (see Kentucky Administrative Regulation 105 KAR 1:420E).
Interest is paid each June 30 on members’ accounts at a rate of 2.5%.

i a member terminates employment and applies to take a refund, the member is entitled to a full refund of
contributions and interest; however, the 1% contribution to the 401{h) account is non-refundable and is forfeited.

Tier 3:

Plan members who began participating on, or after, January 1, 2014, are required to contribute to the Cash Balance
Plan. These members are ciassified in the Tier 3 structure of benefits. The Cash Balance Plan is known as a
hybrid plan because it has characteristics of both a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan. Members
in the plan contribute a set percentage of their salary each month to their own account. Non-hazardous members
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contribute 5%, of their annual creditable compensation and an additional 1% to the health insurance fund which is
not credited to the membet’s account and is not refundable. Tier 3 member accounts are also credited with an
employer pay credit. The employer pay credit represents a portion of the employer contribution.

Interest is paid into the Tier 3 member's account. The account currently earns 4% interest credit on the member's
account balance as of June 30" of the previous year. The member's account may be credited with additional
interest if the system’s five-year Geometric Average Net Investmeant Return (GANIR) exceeded 4%. [f the member
was actively employed and participating in the fiscal year, and if the systems' GANIR for the previous five years
exceeds 4%, then the member's account will be credited with 75% of the amount of the returns over 4% on the
account balance as of June 30" of the previous year (Upside Sharing Interest). It is possible that one system in
KPPA may get an Upside Sharing Interest, while another may not.

The one percent of pay member confributions for Tier 2 and Tier 3 members to a 401(h) subaccount are considered
an OPEB asset,
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Methods and Assumptions Used in Calculation of Actuarially Determined Contributions (Pension Plan)

Per the Kentucky Public Pension Authority's 2021 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, the actuarially
determined contribution rates effective for fiscal year ending 2021 are calculated as of June 30, 2019. Based on
the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation report, (as amended by SB 249, passed during the 2020 legislative session),

the actuarial methods and assumptions used fo calculate these contribution rates are as follows:

ltem

CERS
June 30, 2021
Non-Hazardous

Determined by the Actuarial
Valuation as of:

Actuarial Cost Method:
Asset Valuation Method:

Amortization Method:

Amortization Period:

Payroll Growth Rate:
Investment Return:
Inflation:

Salary Increases:

Mortality:

Phase-in Provision

June 30, 2019

Entry Age Normal

20% of the difference between the
market value of assets and the
expected actuarial value of assets
is recognized.

Level Percent of Pay

30 Years, ciosed period at June 30, 2019,
Gains/Losses incurring after 2019 will be
amortized over separate closed 20 year
amortization bases.

2.00%
6.25%
2.30%
3.30% to 10.30%, varies by senice

System specific mortality table based on
mortality experience from 2013 - 2018,
projected with the ultimate rates from MP-
2014 mortality improvement scale using a
base year of 2019,

Board certified rate is phased into the
actuarially determined rate in accordance
with HB-382 enacted in 2018.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used in Calculation of the Actuarially Detfermined Total Pension
Liability and Net Pension Liability

The Board of Trustees, in consultation with the actuary, set the actuarial assumptions and methods in the actuarial
valuation. In general, the assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuations were adopted for first use in
the June 30, 2019 valuation and are hased on an experience study conducted with experience through June 30,
2018. There were no changes in actuarial assumptions or methods since the prior valuation. The net pension
liabitity as of June 30, 2021, is based on the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation rolled forward fo June 30, 2021. The
total pension liability, net pension liability and sensitivity information as of June 30, 2020 were based on an actuarial
valuation date of June 30, 2019. The total pension liability was rolled forward from the valuation date to the
measurement date at June 30, 2021, using generally accepted actuarial principles.

There have been no changes in actuarial assumptions since June 30, 2020. Senate bill 169 passed during the
2021 legislative session increased the disability benefits for members who become “totally and permanently
disabled” in the line of duty or as a result of a duty-related liability. The total pension liability as of June 30, 2021,
is determined using these updated benefit provisions.

The actuarial assumptions are:

Non-Hazardous
June 30, 2021

Payroll Growth 2.00%
Inflation 2.30%
Salary Increases 3.30% - 10.30% varies by service
Investment Rate of Return 6.25%

The mortality table(s) used in the determination of the total pension liability as of June 30, 2021 were as follows.

« The mortality table used for active members was a Pub-2010 Generai Mortality table for the Non-
hazardous System, projected with the ultimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale
using a base year of 2019.

+ The mortality table used for healthy retired members was a system-specific mortality table based on
mortality experience from 2013-2018, projected with the ultimate rates from MP-2014 mortality
improvement scale using a base year of 2019,

¢ The mortality table used for the disabled members was PUB-2010 Disabled Mortality table, with a 4-
year set-forward for both male and female rates, projected with the ultimate rates from the MP-2014
mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2019,

Discount Rate

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate of 6.25% for CERS Nen-hazardous for the year
ended June 30, 2021 assumes that the fund received the required employer contributions each future year, as
determined by the current funding policy established in statute, as last amended by House Bill 362 (passed in 2018).

The discount rate does not use a municipal bond rate. The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic
nominal rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the KRS Comprehensive Annual Financial

Report,
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to the County Employee Retirement System Pension

At June 30, 2022 the City reported a {Government-wide) liability of $7,764,111 [$3,613,093 governmental funds
and $4,151,018 proprietary fund)] for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liabifity for
CERS was measured as of June 30, 2021 and was based on the actual liability of the employees and former
employees relative to the total liability of the system as determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The
City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long-term share of contributions
to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At
June 30, 2021 the City’s Governmental Funds proportion was 0.056669 percent, which is an increase of 0.00165%
for the year. At June 30, 2021 the City's Proprietary Fund's proportionate share was 0.065106%, which is an
increase of 0.005019% for the year.

The total payroll of the City's Governmental Funds for the year ended June 30, 2022 was $1,762,221. Contributions
to the CERS were based on $1,480,521 (covered payroll). The total employer pension contributions for the year
ended June 30, 2022 were $313,426.

The total payroll of the City's Governmentai Funds for the year ended June 30, 2021 was $1,721,105. Contributions
to the CERS were based on $1,449,336 (covered payroll). The total employer pension contributions for the year
ended June 30, 2021 were $279,722,

The total payroll of the City's Proprietary Fund for the year ended June 30, 2022 was $1,930,290. Contributions to
the CERS were based on $1,680,781 (covered payroll). The total employer pension contributions for the year
ended June 30, 2022 were $357.717.

The total payroll of the City’s Proprietary Fund for the year ended June 30, 2021 was $1,869,166. Contributions to
the CERS were based on $1,662,977 (covered payroll). The total employer pension contributions for the year
ended June 30, 2021 were $321,528.

All contributions were made as required.

The City's Governmental and Proprietary Funds’ contributions to the County Employees’ Retirement System for the
year ended June 30, 2021 were 0.056669% and 0.065108%, respectively, of the system's total contribution
requirements for all employers.

For the year ended June 30, 2022 the City recognized total pension expense of $932,558 {($461,750 Governmental
Funds and $470,808 Proprietary Fund, respectively). At June 30, 2022 the City reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the CERS pension from the following sources:
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
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June 30, 2022
Governmental Funds

Proprietary Fund

Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Qutflows of Inflows of Qutflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources
Difference Between Expected and Actual
Experience $ 41,489 $ 35,068 $ 470666 $ 40,288
Change in Assumptions 48,492 - 55,712 -
Changes in Proportion and Differences
Between Employer Contributions and
Proportionate Share of Contributions 120,028 - 263,810 126,677
Net Difference Between Projected and
Actual Investment Earnings on Pension
Plan Investments 140,164 621,729 161,032 714,293
City Contributions Made Subsequent to
the NPL Measurement Date 311,359 - 365,386 -
Total $ 661,532 $ 656,797 $ 893,606 $ 881,258

$676.745 ($311,359 Governmental Funds and $365,386 Proprietary Fund, respectively) reported as deferred
outflows of resources related to pensions arising from City contributions made subsequent to the measurement
date will be recognized as a reduction in the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023. Amounts reported
as deferred inflows and outflows of resources due to the net difference between projected and actual investment
earnings on pension plan investments will be netted and amortized over five years and recognized in pension
expense. Amounts reported as deferred inflows and outflows of resources due to the difference between expected
and actual experience, change of assumptions, and changes in proportion and differences between employer
contributions and proportionate share of contributions will be amortized and recognized in pension expense over
the expected remaining service lives of all employees. Total amortization to be recognized in pension expense is
presented below as follows:

Governmental Funds Proprietary Fund

Increase Increase

(Decrease) (Decrease)
Year Ended June 30, 2022; to Pension Expense to Pension Expense
2023 $ 22,020 $ (34,473)
2024 {72,434) (29,188)
2025 (105,408) (116,125)
2026 (150,802) (173,252)
2027 & thereafter - -
$ {306,624) 3 (353,038)
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Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following table presents the net pension liability of CERS [as reported in its publicly available financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2021] calculated using the discount rate of 6.25% for the year ended June
30, 2021, as well as what CERS' net pensicn liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one
percentage point lower or one percentage peoint higher than the approved rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
[5.25%] [6.25%] [7-25%)]
Net Pension Liability $ 8,177,245,927 $ 6,375,784,388 3 4,885,117,245
City's Proportionate Share 9,057,841 7,764,111 5,948,851

Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2022, the City reported a payable of $71,066 for the outstanding amount of contributions required for
the year then ended. The amount represents the employee withholding and employer match for the last month of
the year then ended.

OPEB PLAN

Insurance (OPEB} Plan Description — The Kentucky Public Pension Authority’s Insurance Fund (Insurance Fund)
was established to provide hospitai and medical insurance for eligible members receiving benefits from KERS,
CERS, and SPRS. The eligible non-Medicare retirees are covered by the Department of Employee Insurance (DEI)
plans. KRS submits the premium payments to DEI. The Board contracts with Humana to provide health care
benefits to the eligible Medicare retirees through a Medicare Advantage Plan. The Insurance Fund pays a
prescribed contribution for whole or partial payment of required premiums to purchase hospital and medical
insurance. A portion of the insurance premiums are withheld from benefit payments for members including those
of the CERS Non-Hazardous systems.

Contributions

The amount of benefit paid by the Insurance Fund is based on years of service. For members who began
participating prior to July 1, 2003, a percentage of the contribution rate is paid based on years of service with 100%
of the contribution rate being paid with 20 years of service. Since the passage of House Bill 280 (2004 Kentucky
General Assembly), medical insurance benefits have been calculated differently for members who began
participating on or after July 1, 2003. Once members reach a minimum vesting period of 10 years, Non-Hazardous
employees whose participation began on or after July 1, 2003, earn $10 per month for insurance benefits at
retirement for every year of earned service without regard to a maximum dollar amount.  This dollar amount is
subject to adjustment annually, which is currently 1.5%, based upon Kentucky Revised Statutes. House Bill 1 (2008
Kentucky General Assembly) changed the minimum vesting requirement for participation in the health insurance
plan to 15 years for members whose participation began on or after September 1, 2008. This benefit is not protected
under the inviolable contract provision of Kentucky Revised Statutes 16.652, 61.692 and 78.852. The Kentucky
General Assembly reserves the right to suspend or reduce this benefit if, in its judgment, the welfare of the
Commonwealth so demands.

Page 52



CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022

NOTE 4. OTHER NOTES {Continued)

4.A. COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM - NON-HAZARDOUS EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN
AND POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFIT (INSURANCE PLAN) (Continued)

Contributions (Continued)

The Insurance Fund pays 100% of the contribution rate for hospital and medical insurance premiums for the spouse
and dependents of members who die as a direct result of an act in the line of duty or from a duty-related injury.

The amount of benefit paid by the Insurance Fund is based on years of service. For members participating prior to
July 1, 2003, years of service and respective percentages of the maximum contribution are as follows:

Portion Paid by Insurance Fund

Paid by
Years of Service Insurance Fund (%)
20+ years 100.00%
15-19 years 75.00%
10-14 years 50.00%
4-9 years 25.00%
Less than 4 years 0.00%

For members participating on or after July 1, 2003, for CERS Non-Hazardous, the dollar contribution for fiscal year
2021 was $13.78.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, plan members who began on, or after, September 1, 2008 (classified in
the Tier 2 or Tier 3 structure of benefits) were required to contribute 1% of their annual creditable compensation to

an account created for the payment of health insurance benefits under 26 USC Section 401(h) in the Pension Fund
{see Kentucky Administrative Regulation 105 KAR 1:420E), which is considered an CPEB asset.

If a member terminates employment the 1% contribution to the 401(h) account is non-refundable and is forfeited.

Participating employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate as described previously.

Methods and Assumptions Used in Calculation of Actuarially Determined Contributions (OPEB)

Per the Schedule of Employer Allocations and OPEB Amounts by Employer for Kentucky Public Pension Authority
(KPPA), Reporis for Postemployment Benefits prepared as of June 30, 2021, the actuarially determined contribution
rates effective for fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 are calculated based on the actuarial methods and assumptions

as follows:
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COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM - NON-HAZARDOUS EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN
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Methods and Assumptions Used in Calculation of Actuarially Determined Contributions (OPEB) (Continued)

ltem

CERS
June 30, 2021
Non-Hazardous

Determined by the Actuarial
Valuation as of:

Experience Study
Actuarial Cost Method:
Asset Valuation Method:

Amortization Method;

Payroll Growth:
Investment Return;
Inflation:

Salary Increases:
Mortality:

Healthcare Trend Rates.
Pre-65

Post-65

Phase-ln Provision

Remaining Amortization Period:

June 30, 2019
July 1, 2008 - June 30, 2013
Entry Age Normal

20% of the difference between the
market value of assets and the
expected actuarial value of assets
is recognized.

Level Percent of Pay

30 Years, closed period at June 30, 2019
Gains/Losses incurring after 2019, will be amortized
over separate 20 year amortization bases.

2.00%
6.25%
2.30%
3.30% - 10.30% varies by service

System-specific mortality table based on mortality
experience from 2013-2018, projected with the ultimate
rates from MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using
2 base year of 2019.

Initial trend starting at 6.25% at January 1, 2021 and
gradually decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 4.05%
over a period of 13 years. The 2020 premiums were
known at the time of the valuation and were
incorporated into the liability measurement.

Initial trend starting at 5.50% at January 1, 2021 and
gradually decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 4.05%
over a period of 14 years. The 2020 premiums were
known at the time of the valuation and wers
incorporated into the liability measurement.

Board Certifled Rate is phased into the actuarially
determined rate in accordance with HB 362 enacted in
2018.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions to Determine the Total OPEB Liability and Net OPEB Liability

The assumed increase in future health care costs, or trend assumptions was reviewed during the June 30, 2020
valuation process and was updated to better reflect the plan’s anticipated long-term healthcare cost increases. In
general, the updated assumption is assuming higher future increases in healthcare costs. There were no other
material assumption changes.

For financial reporting, the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, was performed by Gabriel Roeder Smith (GRS).
The total OPEB liability, net OPEB liability, and sensitivity information as of June 30, 2021, were based on an
actuarial valuation date of June 30, 2020. The total OPEB liability was rolled forward from the valuation date {June
30, 2020) to the plan’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, using generally accepted actuarial principles.

Senate Bill 169 passed during the 2021 legislative session increased the disability benefits for members who
become “totally and permanently disabled” in the line of duty as a result of a duty-related disability. The total OPEB
liability as of June 30, 2021 was determined using these updated benefit provision.

The actuariat methods and assumptions used to determine the Totai OPEB Liability and Net OPEB Liability are as

follows:
CERS
June 30, 2021
Non-hazardous
Inflation 2.30%
Payroll Growth Rate 2.00%
Salary Increases 3.30% - 10.30% varies by service
Investment Rate of Return 6.25%
Healthcare Trend Rates

Pre-65 Initial trend starting at 8.30% at January 1, 2023, and
gradually decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 4.05%
over a pericd of 13 years.

Post-65 Initial trend staring at 6.30% at January 1, 2023, and
gradually decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 4.05%
over a period of 13 years.

Mortality

Pre-retirement

PUB-2010 General Mortality Table, projected with the
ultimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvement
scale using a base year of 2010,

Post-retirement (non-disabled) System Specific Mortality Table based on mortality
experience from 2013-2018, projected with the ultimate
rates from MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using
a base year of 2019.

FPost-retrement (disabled) PUB-2010 Disabled Mortality Table, with a 4-year set
forward for both male and female rates, projected with
the ultimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality
improvement scale using a base year of 2010.
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Discount Rate

The projection of cash flows used to determine the June 30, 2021 discount rate of 5.20% for CERS Non-hazardous
which is a decrease of 0.14% over the prior year, assumed that each participating employer would contribute the
actuarially determined employer contribution each future year calculated in accordance with the current funding
policy, as most recently reviewed by House Bill 8, passed during the 2021 legislative session which limit the increase
to 12% over the prior fiscal year through June 30, 2028. The single discount rate determination used an expected
rate of return of 6.25%, and a municipal bond rate of 1.92%, as reported in Fidelity Index’s “20-year Municipal GO
AA Index” as of June 28, 2021,

Implicit Employer Subsidy for Non-Medicare Retirees

The fully-insured premiums KPPA pays for the Kentucky Employees’ Health Plan are blended rates based on the
combined experience of active and retired members. Because the average cost of providing health care benefits
to retirees under age 65 is higher than the average cost of providing health care benefits to active employees, there
is an implicit employer subsidy for the non-Medicare eligible retirees. The liability associated with this implicit
subsidy is included in the calculation of the total OPERB liability.

The cost asscciated with the implicit employer subsidy was not included in the calculation of the System’s actuarial
determined contributions, and any cost associated with the implicit subsidy will not be paid out of the System's
trusts. Therefore, the municipal bond rate was applied to future expected benefit payments associated with the
impiicit subsidy. The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic nominal rates of return for each major
asset class are summarized in the Kentucky Public Pension Autharity’s CAFR,

OPERB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred QOutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
refated to the County Employee Retirement System Insurance Plan

At June 30, 2022 the City (Government-wide) reported a Net OPEB fiability of $2,330,767 [$1,084,632 governmental
funds and $1,246,135 proprietary fund].

The total payroll of the City's Governmentai Funds for the year ended June 30, 2022 was $1,762,221. Contributions
to the CERS were based on $1,480,521 (covered payroll). The total employer contributions to the Health Insurance
Fund for the year ended June 30, 2022 were $85,574.

The total payroli of the City’s Governmental Funds for the year ended June 30, 2021 was $1,721,105. Contributions
to the CERS were based cn $1, 449,336 {covered payroll). The total employer contributions to the Health Insurance
Fund for the year ended June 30, 2021 were $68,988.

The total payroll of the City's Proprietary Fund for the year ended June 30, 2022 was $1,930,290. Contributions to
the CERS were based on $1,680,781 (covered payroll). The total employer contributions to the Health Insurance
Fund for the year ended June 30, 2022 were $98,498,

The total payroil of the City’s Proprietary Fund for the year ended June 30, 2021 was $1,869,166. Contributions to
the CERS were based on $1,662,977 (covered payroll). The total employer contributions to the Health insurance
Fund for the year ended June 30, 2021 were $79,299.

All contributions were made as required.

The City's Governmental and Proprietary Funds’ contributions to the County Employees; Retirement System for the
year ended June 30, 2021 were 0.056655% and 0.085091%, respectively, of the System's total contribution
requirements for all employers.

The implicit employer subsidy for the non-Medicare eligible retirees for the year ended June 30, 2021 was $32,070
and $36,845 for the governmental funds and proprietary fund, respectively.
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NOTE 4. OTHER NOTES (Continued)

COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM — NON-HAZARDOUS EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN
AND POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFIT (INSURANCE PLAN) (Continued)

4.A.

OPEB Liabhilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Quiflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
related fo the County Employee Retirement System Insurance Plan (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2022 the City recognized total other post employments benefit (OPEB) expense of
$258,021 ($123,818 governmental funds and $134,203 proprietary fund, respectively). At June 30, 2022 the City
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the CERS OPEB from the
following sources:

June 30, 2022
Governmental Funds

Proprietary Fund

Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources
Difference Between Expected and Actual
Experience $ 170,559 $ 323,835 $ 195955 $ 372,054
Change in Assumptions 287,556 1,009 330,374 1,159
Changes in Proportion and Differences
Between Employer Contributions and
Proportionate Share of Contributions 54,340 572 109,225 64,079
Net Difference Between Projected and
Actual Investment Earnings on OPEB
Plan Investiments 54,647 224,322 62,784 257,724
City Contributions Made Subsequent to
the Net OPER Measurement Date 76,791 - 90,118 -
Total $ 643,893 $ 549,738 $ 788,454 $ 695,016

$166,907 ($76,791, Governmental Funds and $90,116, Proprietary Fund, respectively) reported as deferred
outflows of resources related to OPEB arising from City contributions made subsequent to the measurement date
will be recognized as a reduction in the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2023. Amounts reported as
deferred inflows and outflows of resources due to the net difference between projected and actual investment
earnings on OPEB plan investments will be netted and amortized over five years and recognized in OPEB expense.
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources due to the difference
between expected and actual experience, change of assumptions, and changes in proportion and differences
between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions will be amortized and recognized in OPEB
expense over the expected remaining service lives of all employees. Total amortization to be recognized in OPEB
expense is presented below as follows:

Governmental Funds Proprietary Fund

Increase Increase
{Decrease) (Decrease)
Year Ended June 30, 2022: to OPEB Expense to OPEB Expense

2023 $ 42,860 3 41,150

2024 17,048 11,508

2025 13,617 5,038

2026 (56,161) (54,374)

2027 & thereafter - -

$ 17,364 $ 3,322
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NOTE 4. OTHER NOTES (Continued)

4.A. COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM — NON-HAZARDOUS EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN
AND POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFIT (INSURANCE PLAN) (Continued)

Payable to the OPEB Health Insurance Plan

At June 30, 2022, the City reported a payable of $17,880 for the outstanding amount of contributions required for
the year then ended. This amount represents the employee withholding and employer match for the last month of
the year then ended.

Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Liability to
Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Trend Rate

The following table presents the net other post-employment benefit liability of CERS [as reported in its publicly
available financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021, calculated using the single discount rate of 5.20%
as well as what CERS' net OPER liability would be if it were calculated using a single discount rate that is one
percentage point lower or one percentage peint higher than the approved rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
[4.20%] [5.20%] [6.20%]
Net OPEB Liability $ 2,628,625,378 $ 1,914.449,967 $ 1,328,432,699
City's Proportionate Share 3,200,124 2,330,767 1,617,314

The following table presents the net other post-employment benefit liability of CERS [as reported in its publicly
avajlable financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021, calculated using the heaithcare cost trend rate for
the year ended June 30, 2021 as well as what CERS’ net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a
heaithcare cost trend rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the approved rate:

1% Current Healthcare Cost 1%
Decrease Trend Rate Increase
Net OPEB Liability $ 1,378,176,465 $ 1,914,449,967 $ 2,561,740,477
Citys Proportionate Share 1,677,875 2,330,767 3,118,816

4.B. RISK MANAGEMENT
Insurance and Related Activities

The City is exposed to various forms of loss of assets associated with the risks of fire, personal liability, theft,
vehicular accidents, errors and omissions, fiduciary responsibility, etc. Each of these risks are covered through the
purchase of commercial insurance through the Kentucky League of Cities. The City is also subject to the risks
associated with employee injury. These risks are covered through premiums paid to Kentucky Employers’ Mutual
Insurance. Such coverage is retrospectively rated and premiums may be adjusted based on experience.

Due to the economic dependence of the City's utility system on gas purchases made by seven local industries,
Carrollton Utilities is at risk for the financial impact on its cash flows and financial position from economic impacts
on those industries that would affect each industry’s ability to meet its obligations for such purchases. Credit risk
insurance has been agquired to minimize this risk.
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NOTE 4. OTHER NOTES {Continued)
4.C. COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES

Each employee is granted sick leave at the rate of eight hours per month up to a maximum of 1,040 hours.
Employees shall not be paid for unused sick leave credit upon termination of employment, except that employees
who retire and receive CERS retirement benefits may personally receive payment for unused sick leave for the
same amount that CERS would charge for applying the accrued sick leave to extend retirement benefits. The total
liability for accumulated sick leave at June 30, 2022 was $539,098 [$234,633 for the governmental fund and
$304,465 for the proprietary fund]. No accrual has been receorded in the financial statements due to the contingent

nature of this liability.

The City receives funding from Federal, State, and Local government agencies and private contributions. These
funds are to be used for designated purposes only. For government agency grants, if based on the grantor’s review,
the funds are considered not to have been used for the intended purposes, the grantors may request a refund of
monies advanced, or refuse to reimburse the City for its disbursements. The amount of such future refunds and
unreimbursed disbursements, if any, is not expected to be significant. Continuation of the City's grant programs is
predicated upon the grantors’ satisfaction that the funds provided are being spent as intended and the grantors’
intent to continue their programs.

Carrollton Utilities has access to storage as part of its transportation services with Texas Gas Transmission. Gas
is withdrawn from its storage account during the winter period (November — February) to be replenished the
following summer period (March — Octobar). At June 30, 2022, Carrollton Utilities has a prepaid and accrued
storage asset estimated to be $41,598, based on actual cost following year end.

The City has various pending claims or lawsuits. The ultimate disposition of any settlement or other legal decision
is not determined at the present time.

Long Term Gas Supply Arrangements
Public Energy Authority of Kentucky (Formerly Public Energy Authority of Kentucky, Inc.)

The Public Energy Authority of Kentucky, Inc. (the Authority) is a nonprofit corporation organized in 2003 by the
City of Carrollton, Kentucky, and the City of Henderson, Kentucky (collectively, the Cities), under the Provisions of
Kentucky Revised Statutes, Sections 273.161 through 273.390, Section 65.210 through 65.300, and Section
58.180, as amended, and the Public Energy Authority of Kentucky, Inc. Interlocal Agreement dated March 1, 2003,
for the purposes of providing gas acquisition, delivery and other related services to the Cities and other public
agencies that may become signatories to the Interlocal Agreement {the Members). The Public Energy Authority of
Kentucky, Inc. was the operating entity at July 1, 2008.

The Kentucky Legislature enacted the Natural Gas Acquisition Authority Act with the legislation effective on July
15, 2008. Effective September 5, 2008 the Public Energy Authority of Kentucky, Inc. was converted to the Public
Energy Authority of Kentucky (the Authority}). The Public Energy Authority of Kentucky is a Natural Gas Acquisition
Authority under the Provisions of the Kentucky Revised Statutes, Section 353.400 through 353.410, as amended,
and the Public Energy Authority of Kentucky Interlocal Agreement dated as of July 15, 2008, for the purposes of
providing gas acquisition, delivery and other related services to the Cities and other public agencies that may
become signatories to the Interlocal Agreement (the Members). The newly created Authority assumed all assets,
liahilities, and ongoing operations of the Public Energy Authority of Kentucky, inc. in 2008,

The Public Energy Authority of Kentucky has entered in Gas Sale Contracts with the Cities, other municipal utilities,
and joint action agencies {the Participants} providing for the sale of specific quantities of gas. Under the terms of
the various agreements, the Authority is guaranteed to receive agreed-upon quantities of gas over an initial period
of 5 to 30 years. The Participants are obligated under the contracts to make payments to the Authority from
revenues of their public gas utilities as an operating and maintenance expense and as a cost of purchased natural

gas.
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NOTE 4. OTHER NOTES (Continued)
4.C. COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Leng Term Gas Supply Arrangements (Continued)

Public Energy Authority of Kentucky (Formerly Public Energy Authority of Kentucky, Inc.) (Continued)

PEAK issues separate financial statements available through its administrative offices. Summarized totals for
PEAK, from its audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022, are as follows:

Assets and Deferred Oufflows $ 6,134,694,165
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows $ 6,129,147,608
Total Net Position $ 5,546,557

Costs Recoverable from Future Billings (Included in Assets Above) $ 231,182,944

*  The long-term gas supply contracts establish a pricing mechanism outlining the methods for billing Members
and project participants for gas supply services provided under the contract. Expenses in excess of amounts
currently billable to the Members and project participants will be recovered from future billings.

4.D. MISCELLANEOUS

Bad Debt Expense

Utility revenue charges have been netted with an estimated bad debt expense of $9,220, $15,669, and $11,744 for
gas, water and sewer services, respectively.

Income Tax Status

The City is exempt from federal and state income taxes. Accordingly, the financial statements include no provision
for income taxes.

Economic Dependence

Carrollton Utilities Commission provides natural gas to residential, commercial, and industrial customers. It should
be noted that 97.48% of the total gas revenue is received from eight industrial customers. As described in Note
4.C., all natural gas purchases are made through the Public Energy Authority of Kentucky (PEAK). $59,478,449
of the $61,808,747 gas cost of goods sold are for natural gas purchases, excluding related transportation costs.
Additionally, 33.5% of the City’s General Fund revenues are attributable to gas prepurchase agreements with PEAK.

Related Party Transactions

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the City received $44,578 from the Carrollton Housing Authority as payments in
lfeu of tax.
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NOTE 4. OTHER NOTES (Continued)
4D. MISCELLANEOUS (Continued)
Carrollton Utilities Natural Gas Hedge Policy

Carrollton Utilities encounters financial risk because natural gas accounts for the vast majority of its expenses, and
the price of this commeodity is volatile. This price risk can be managed with hedging techniques. Carrollton Utilities
engages in hedge transactions that are consistent with prudent risk management practices. Hedge transactions
must be related to Carroliton Utilities gas sales or acquisition commitments {including fixed price commitments
made on behalf of customers), existing assets and liabilities, and foreseeable future purchase and sales
requirements. Carrollton Utilities does not engage in speculation. Unless otherwise authorized by resolution of the
Carrollton Utilities Commission, Carrollton Utilities executes financial hedges only with the Public Energy Authority
of Kentucky (PEAK).

Subject to approved guidelines, Carrollton Utilities executes hedges for its large industrial customers without specific
approval of the Carroliten Utilities Commission. The Commission shall approve all other hedges, including those
relating to system supply gas requirements, ie., gas requirements for residential, commercial and industrial
customers with annual requirements less than 15,000 Mcf per year.

Segment Information — Enterprise Fund

The City maintains an enterprise fund which provides gas, water, and sewer services. Selected financial information
for business segments of the enterprise fund for the year ended June 30, 2022, is presented as follows:

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION Gas Water Sewer Total
Assets:
Current Assets $ 22065817 $(2,253,563) $ (837,362) $ 18,074,892
Other Noncurrent Assets 1,219,460 385,623 530,817 2,135,900
Capital Assets (Net) 14,055,243 8,225,885 23,951,810 46,232,938
Total Assets $ 37,340,520 § 6357945 $23,645265 § 67,343,730
Deferred Outflows: $ 706,466 § 403694 $ 571900 $ 1,682,060
Liabilities:
Due to Other Funds $ 1272569 $ 34565 § - $ 1,307,134
Other Current Liabilities 9,734,713 136,283 408,162 10,279,158
Due to Other Funds (Noncurrent) 729,153 - - 729,153
Cther Noncurrent Liabilities 4,977,869 3,933,730 2,900,851 11,812,450
Total Liabilities $16,714,304 § 4,104,578 $ 3,309013 $ 24,127,895
Deferred Inflows: $ 655573 $ 512604 $ 408,097 & 1,576,274
Net Position:
Net Investmentin Capital Assets $ 11245509 § 5985718 §$22,288,857 $ 39,520,084
Restricted for Debt Senvice 429,641 112,529 444,355 986,525
Unrestricted 9,001,959 (3,953,790) {2,233,157) 2,815,012
Total Net Pasition $ 20677109 § 2,144,457 $ 20,500,055 $ 43,321,621
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NOTE 4. OTHER NOTES (Continued)
4.D. MISCELLANEOUS (Continued)
Segment Information — Enterprise Fund (Continued)

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

Gas Water Sewer Total

Operating Revenues $ 64377891 % 1,876,998 $ 2729924 $ 68,084,810
Depreciation Expense (640,231} {410,585) {978,794} (2,029,610)
Other Operating Expenses (63,531,755} (1,582,914) (1,656,239) (66,770,908)

Net Operating Income (Loss) $ 205905 $ (116,504) $ 94891 § 184,292
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):

Interest Income 22,088 3,738 1,701 27,527

Interest & Fiscal Charges (84,864) (27,357) (25,146) {137,367)

Capital Contributions 1,076,008 1,982,886 86,289 3,145,183

Change in Net Position $ 1219137 % 1842763 § 157,735  $ 3,219,635
Beginning Net Position (As Restated) 19,457,972 301,694 20,342,320 40,101,986
Ending Net Position $ 20677109 § 2144457 $ 20500,055 § 43321621
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Gas Water Sewer Total
Net Cash Provided (Used) by:

Operating Activities $ 662893 $§ 277314 § 1141287 $ 2,081,494

Capital and Related Financing Activities 131,732 (361,989) (703,070) (933,327)

Investing Activities (3,350,603) (59,483) (68,564) (3,478,650)

Net Increase (Decrease) $ (2.555978) $ (144,158) $ 369,653 $ (2,330,483)

Beginning Cash and Cash Equivalents 11,802,359 (2,298,283) {981,571) 8,622,505
Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 9346381 § (2442441 $ (611,918) $ 6,292,022

4.E. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has considered subsequent events through the date of this report March 14, 2023, for disclosure. The
immediate and long-term impact that ongoing pandemic issues may have on the financial position of the City is
unknown at this time.

4.F. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The following discloses the restaternent of Proprietary Fund net position as of the beginning of the fiscal year:

Proprietary Fund

Net Position, beginning of year, as previously stated: $ 40,082,974
*Change in net position increase due to fixed asset removals 19.012
Net Position, beginning of year, as restated: $ 40,101,986

*During fiscal year June 30, 2021, the Proprietary Fund conducted a review of the capital asset
inventory and removed impaired or idle capital assets. During fiscal year June 30, 2022,
additional costs related to the idle assets were removed and reported as a prior period
adjustment.
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NOTE 4. OTHER NOTES (Continued)
4.G. WEST CARROLL WATER DISTRICT MERGER & CHANGE IN PRESENTATION

July 1, 2021, West Carroll Water District merged with the Carrollton Utilities Commission. This merger was initiated
as a requirement imposed on West Carroll Water District by the Kentucky Public Service Commission under CASE
No. 2018-00041. The merger was approved by the Carrollton Utilities Commission, the City of Carroliton, the West
Carroll Water District, and the Kentucky Public Service Commission. Under the merger agreement, all assets and
liabilities of the West Carroll Water District was combined with those of the Carrollton Utilitles Commission. The
custemers of the West Carroll Water District now receive water service from the Carrollton Utilities Commission.

The initial opening balances of the assets, liabilities, and net position recorded as of July 1, 2021, were determined
based ¢n the carrying values reported in the financial statements of West Carroll Water District as of June 30, 2021.
The excess of Net Position transferred to the Carrollton Utilities Commission has been reported as contributed capital.
The assets and liabilities received are as follows:

Current Assets $ 470,621
Capital Assets - Net 2,549,408
Other Assets 1,370
Total Assets $ 3,021,399
Current Liabilities $ 49,682
Long-Term Liabilities 988,832
Total Liabiiities $ 1,038,514
Net Posltion $ 1,082,885

Capital asset and accumulated depreciation balances associated with the West Carroll Water District assets were
included in the beginning capital asset and accumulated depreciation figures in Note 3.G. Accounts payable and
notes payable to the Carrollton Utilities Commission prior to July 1, 2021 were eliminated [offset] in the records of the
Carrollton Utilities Commission. All bonds payable to Rural Development were repaid at the date of the merger.

In previous periods, the City's proprietary fund reported revenues from the management of the West Carroll Water
District and expenses related fo these management services in a separate column in the enterprise fund departmental
schedules as Contractual Services. The revenues associated with this service was also reported separately in the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position as Confractual Services. In the current year,
following the merger, the water revenues and expenses associated with operating the West Carroll Water District
water system is included in water revenues and expenses, as applicable.
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Variance
With Final
Budgeted Amounts Budget
Actual Favorable
Original Final Amounts {Unfavorable)
Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 $3,828,083  §$3,797,868 $ 3797896 {2)
ESTIMATED REVENUES
Payments in Lieu of Taxes $ 37,000 § 38,000 $ 44 578 $ 6,578
Ad Valorem Taxes 461,320 485,630 499,338 13,708
Franchise Fees 388,500 385,500 408,663 23,163
Garbage Collection 390,000 415,000 412,781 {2,219)
Bank Franchise Deposit Tax 27,000 39,979 39,578 (1}
Business Licenses 100,000 103,000 105,366 2,366
Insurance licenses 580,000 543,000 682,787 39,787
Building Permits 1,500 2,300 2,448 146
Penalty & Interest $,000 10,000 12,447 2,447
Interest Revenue 14,107 2,900 9,073 6,173
PEAK Annual Return 1,895,771 2,216,367 2,217,956 1,588
Two Rivers Campground Receipts 150,010 167,500 175,312 7,812
Other Revenue 12,500 33,025 30,197 (2,828)
Proceeds frorn Qutside Sources:
HB413/Citations/Police Misc. Receipts 12,500 11,500 15,407 3,907
CC Fiscal Court - Dispatch 322,912 379,150 313,369 (65,781)
CC Fiscal Court - CMRS Landlines 100,000 100,000 110,254 10,254
Police & Firefighter's Incentive Pay 60,000 60,000 47,457 (12,543)
State Fire Aid 11,000 11,000 11,000 -
Carroll County Board of Education - Resource Officer 189,800 193,000 190,133 {2,867)
CRMS Dispatch Equipment Grant 95,667 311,765 270,072 (41,693)
FEMA Grants - 28,527 28,527 -
KIA Grant for CU - 108,900 3,000 {105,000)
American Relief Plan Act Grant - - 955,971 995,871
Sale of Capital Assets 50 99,675 99,675 -
Total Estimated Revenues $4,858,637 $5,845,718 5 6,725,787 $ 880,068
Total Rescurces Available for Appropriation $8,786,720 $9,643,616 $ 10,523,683 $ 880,067
APPROPRIATIONS
Administrative $ 633605 § 748157 § 688,924 % 60,163
Public Safety
Fire Department 187,708 170,266 183,827 (13,561)
Dispatch 559,503 500,286 571,265 26,021
Police Department 1,426,980 1,621,461 1,467,075 54,386
Sanitation 350,000 366,332 366,985 (653}
Public Works 902,357 868,413 732,474 136,939
Parks and Recreation 180,382 194,084 175,430 18,654
Code Enforcement 113,305 129,716 112,875 16,840
Capital Qutlay 678,576 353,512 463,101 {109,589)
Debt Service - Principal 3,744 3,744 3,744 -
Total Appropriations $ 5,036,450 $4957570  § 4765770 § 162,200
Excess of Resources and Revenues Over
{Under} Appropriations $3,750,260 $4,585646 § 5757913 $ 1,072,267
Estimated Fund Balance at June 30, 2022 $3,750,260 54,685,646 $ 5757913 § 1072267
See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedule Page 64
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NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
June 30, 2022

Budgetary Accounting

The City Council follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data for the general fund included in the required
supplementary information,

(1)

(6)

The Mayor and City Clerk-Treasurer submit to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year
commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing
them for the upcoming year. Detailed line item budgets are included for administrative control. The level of control
for the detailed budgets is at the deparfment head\function level.

Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comment.

Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

The City Clerk-Treasurer presents monthly financial statements to the City Council comparing actual year to date
expenditures to budgeted expenditures.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year.

The City Council may authorize supplemental appropriations during the year. The budget was amended by
ordinance at year end.

Budget to Actual Reconciliation

An expianation of the differences between budgetary inflows and outfiows and revenues and expenditures determined in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles follows:

General
Fund

Sources/inflows of resources:
Actual amounts {budgetary basis) "available for appropriation” from the

hudgetary comparison schedule $ 10,523,683
Differences - budget to GAAP:

The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary resource but is not

a current year revenue for financial reporting purposes and consists of available cash (3,797,896)

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balances - governmental funds $ 6,725,787

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total apprepriation” from the budgetary

comparison schedule 3 4,765,770
Differences - budget to GAAP:

None

Tota! expenditures as reported on the staterment of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balances - governmental funds $ 4,765,770
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CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY -
COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

June 30, 2022
June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

City's proportion of the net pension liahility (asset) 0.121775% 0.115106% 0.120539% 0.11435% 0.11108% 0.11020% 0.11158% 0.1112%
City's proportionate share of the net pension Sability (asset) % 7.784, 111 $ 8,828,535 3 8,477,562 & 6,964,142 $ 6,501,971 $ 5,430,027 $ 4,797 556 $ 3,608.000
City's coverad payroll g 3,161,302 % 3,112,313 & 3,028,973 $ 2,839,838 5 2,705,054 3 2,609,781 % 2,878,002 $ 2,390,302
City's proportionate share of the net pension jiability

{asset) as a percentage of s of is covered payroll 245.60% 283.66% 273.56% 245 23% 240.36% 208.06% 179.15% 150.94%
Plan fiduciary net position as a perceniage of the fotai

pension liability 57.33% 47 81% 50.45% 53.5% 53.3% 55.5% 59.97% 62 60%

Calculations of the City's proportion of the net pension liability (%) and proportionate share of the net pension liability ($) are based on reports of the Kentucky Public Pension Authority's, County Employess Retirement Systems’ Schedule of Employer
Allocations and Pension Amounts by Employer far the fiscal years ended June 30, shown.

City payroll is reported for its' fiscal years ending June 30, 2014 through 2021.

GASB 68 reguires the City fo present the above information for 10 years. The information will be expanded annually until a full 10-year trend s compiled.

During the 2018 legislative session, House Bill 185 was enacted, which updated the benefit provisicns for active members who die in the line of duty. Benefits paid to the spouses of deceased members have been increased from 25% of the member's

final rate of pay to 75% of the member's average pay. If the member does not have a surviving spouse, henefits paid to surviving dependent children have been increased from 10% of the members final pay rate to 50% of average pay for one child,
55% of average pay for two children, or 75% of average pay for thres children.

Based on the Jure 30, 2019 actuarial report (as amended by SB249, passed during the 2020 legislative session}, the actuarial methods and assumptions used to calculate the required contributions are befow.

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2016 2014
Inflation 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 3.25% 3.25% 3.50%
Balary Increases 3.30%-10.30% 3.30%-10.30% 3.30%-10.30% 3.05% 3.05% 4.00% 4.00% 4.50%
nvestment Rate of Retum §.25% 6.25% 8.25% 6.25% 6.25% 7.50% 7.50% T.75%

The mortality table(s) used in the determination of the total pension liability as of June 20, 2021 were as follows: The mortality table used for active members was 2 Pub-2010 General Mortality table, for the Non-Hazardous System, projected with the
ultimate rates fronr the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2019, The mortality table used for healthy retired members was a system-specific mortality table based on mortality experience from 2013-2018, projected with the

ultimate rates from MP-2014 moertality Improvernent scale using a base year of 2019. The mortality table used for the disabled members was PUB-201C Disabled Mortality tabie, with a 4-year set-forward for both male and female rates, projecied with the
ultimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2019,

The mortality table(s) used in the determination of the total pension liability as of June 30, 2020 were as follows: The mariality table used for active members was 2 Pub-2010 Generat Mortality table, for the Non-Hazardous System, projected with the
ultimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvement scaie using 2 base year of 2010. The mertality table used for healthy retireed members was a system-specific mortality table based on mortality experience from 2013-2018, projected with the
ulimate rates frorm MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2019. The mortality table used for the disabled members was PUB-2010 Disabled Mortality table, with a 4-year set-forward for both male and female rates, projected with the
ulimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvernent scale using a base year of 2010,

Prior to June 20, 2020, the mortality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Tadle projected with Scaie BB to 2013 (multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females). For healthy retired members and beneficiaries, the mortality

table used is the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2073 {set-back for one year for females), For disabled members, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table projected with Scale BB o 2013 {set-back four years for
males) s used for the period after disability retirement.

The assumed rates of retiremeant, withdrawal, and disability were based on an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2019.

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Contractually (Employer) Required
Contribution

Contributions in Retation to the
Cantractually Reguired Contributions

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)
City's Covered Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll

CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S CONTRIBUTIONS {PENSION)
COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
871,143 601,250 3 589,045 $ 490,829 5 406,760 377,349 324,154 334,421
(671,143) {601,250) § (569,045) 3 (490,829) $ (408,780) (377,349} (324,154) (334,421)
- -3 - 5 - 3 - - - -
3,161,302 3,112,313 3 2,948,415 $ 3,098,973 b 2,839,838 2,705,054 2,809,781 2,878,002
21.23% 19.30% 16.30% 16.22% 14.48% 13.95% 12.42% 12.49%

The City's contributions above include only the contributions to th
for 10 years. The information wiil be expanded annually until a full

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements

e County Employees Retirement Sysiems Pension Fund.
10-year trend is compiled.

GASE 68 required the City to present the above information for the CERS Pensicn Fund
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City’s proportion of the net OPER liability {asset) %
GCity propartionate share of the net OPER liabilty (asset)
City's covered payroll

City propartionate share of the net OPEB Hability {asset)
as a percentage of its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net positon as a percentage of the total
OPEB liability,

Calcuiations of the City's proportion of the nat OPEB liability (%) and proportlonate share of the net OPEB liahilit

CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPEB LIABILITY
COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

June 30, 2022
2021 2020 2019 2018 2M7
Q.121748% 0.115072% 0.12055% 0.11435% 0.111082%
5 2,330,767 $ 2,778,639 5 2,027,512 $ 2,030,137 5 2,233,128
3 3161302 s 3,112,313 s 3,088 973 5 2,836,833 s 2,705,054
T373% 89.28% 6543% 71.48% &2 553%
62.81% 51.67% B0.44% 57.6% 52.4%

Schedule of Employer Allacations and OPEB Amounts by Employer for the fiscal years ended June 30, shown.

GASH 75 requires the City to present the above information for 16 years. The information will be expanded annually undil a full 10-year frend is compiled.

City covered payroll is reported for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 through 2021,

During the 2018 legislative session, House Bilt 135 was enacted, which updated the benefit provi;
children of all active members who die in the line of duty.

y (%) are based on report of the Kentucky Public Pensicn Authority's, County Employees Retirement Systems'

sions for actlve rmembers who die in the fine of duty. The system shall now pay 100% of the insurance premium for spouses and

Basad en the Jure 30, 2018 actuarial report {33 amended by SB248, passed during the 2020 legislative sessien), the actuarlal methods and assumptions used to calcutate the required contributions are below.

Actuarlal Methods and Assumptions for Determining Net OPEE Liability:

2029 2020 2019 2013 2017
Payroll Growlh Rate 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Salary Increases 3.30%-10.30% varies by service | 3.30%-10.30% varies by service| 3.30%-10.30% vares by service 3.05% Average 2.05% Average
investment Rate of Retun 5.25% 6.25% £.25% 5.25% 6.25%
tnflation 2.3% 23% 2.5% 2.3% 2.3%

Healtheare Trend Rates,
Pre-635

Initiel trend at 6.25% at January
1, 2021, and gradually
decreasing to an ultimate trend
rate of 4.05% over a peried of
13 years.

Initial trend at 7.00% at January
1, 2020, and gradually
decreasing to an ultimate trend
rate of 4.05% over a period of 12
years,

laitial irend at 7.90% at January
1, 2020, and gradually
decieasing (o an ulimate trend
rate of 4,05% over a period of 12
years.

Initial trend at 7.00% at January
1, 2020, and gradually
decreasing 10 an utimate trend
rate of 4. 05% over a period of 12
years.

Initial rend at 7.00% at January
1, 2020, and gradually
decreasing to an uitimate trend
rate of 4.05% over a periad of 12
years.

Healthcare Trend Rates:
Post-£5

Initlal trend stading at 5.50% at
January 1, 2027, and gradually
decreasing to an uliimate trend
rate of 4.05% over & periad of
14 vears.

Initial trend starting at 5.00% at
January 1, 2020, and gradually
decreasing tu an ulimate trend
rate of 4.05% over & perod of 10
¥ears.

nitial trend starting at 5.00% #t
\January 1, 2020, and gradually
decreasing to an ullimate trend
rate of 4.05% over a perfod of 10
years.

initial trend starting at 5.00% at
January 1, 2020, and graduaiy
decreasing fo an uitimate trend
rate of 4.05% over a period of 10
years.

Initiad trend startfng at 5.00% at
January 1, 2620, and graduaily
decreasing to an ultimate trend
rate of 4.05% over a period of 10
years.

Mortatity:
Pre-Retirement

Post-Retirement

Post-Retirement (disabled}

PUB-2010 General Mortaiity
Table, projected with the
ultimate rates from the MP-2014
mortality improvement scale
using a base year of 2010,

System Specific Mortallty Table
based on morality experiencs
from 2013-2018, projected with
the ultimate rates from MP-2014
mortaiity improverment Scale
using a hase year of 2019,

PUE 2010 Disabled Mortality
Table, with a 4-year set forward
for both male and female rates,
projected with the ultimate rates
fror the MP-2014 mortality
improvement scale using a base
year of 2010 is used for the
period after disability,

PUB-2010 General Mortallty
Tabls, projected with the ulimate
rates from the MP-2014 mortality
improvement scaie using & base
year of 2010.

Syslem Specific Mortality Table
basad on mortality experience
from 2013-2018, projected with
the ultimate rates from MP-2014
mortaiity improvement Scale
using a base year of 2019,

PUB 2010 Disabled Mortality
Table. with a 4-year set forward
for both male and femala rates,
projected with the ultimata rates
from the MP-2014 mortality
improvement scale using a base
year of 2010 s used for the
period after disabillty.

PUB-2010 Generat Mortality
Table, projected with the ultimate
rates from the MP-2014 mortality
improvement scale using a base
year of 2010,

System Specific Modality Table
based on mortality experience
from 2013-2018, projected with
the ultimate rates from MP-2074
mortality imprevement Scale
using a bass vear of 2018,

PUB 2010 Disabled Moctality
Table, with a 4-year set forward
for both male and female rates,
projected with the ultimate rates
from the MP-2014 martality
improvernent scale using a base
year of 2016 is used for the
period after disability.

RP-2000 Combined Mortality
Teble projected with Scale BB 1o
2013 (muttiplied by 50% for
males and 30% for females).

RP-2000 Combined Mortallty
Table projected with Scale 88 to
2013 (set-back for one year for
fernailes).

RP-2000 Combined Disabled
Mortality Table projected with
Soale BE to 2013 (set-back four
years for males) is used for the
period after disability retirement.

RP-2000 Combined Mortality
Table projected with Scale BB to
2013 {muttiphied by 50% for
maies and 30% for famales).

RP-2000 Combined Mortality
Table projected with Scale BB to
2013 (sef-back for one year for
femailes).

RP-2060 Combined Disabled
Mortality Table prajected with
Scale BB to 2013 {set-back four
years for males) is used for the
pediod after disability retirement.

See accompartying notes to the basic financial statements
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Contractually (Employer) Required Contributions

Contributions in Relation to the
Contractually Required Contributions

Centribution Deficiency (Excess)
City's Covered Payroli

Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered Payrol!

CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S CONTRIBUTIONS (OPEB)

COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30

2022 2024 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
$ 184073 § 148287 $ 154,155 § 145360 $ 137,920 $ 127946 $ 121101 8 129047
(184,073) (148,287) (154,155) (145,360) (137,920) (127,946) (121,101) (129,047}
3 -3 - 3 - $ - 3 - 3 - 8 - $ -
$3,181302 $3,112,313  $2948415 $3008973 $2,839,838 $2705054 $2600.781  §2.678.002
5.82% 4.76% 4.76% 5.26% 4.70% 4.73% 4.54% 4.82%

The City's contributions above include only the contributions to the County Employess Retirement System's Insurance Fund. GASB 75 requires the City to present the above information for
the CERS Insurance Fund for 10 years. The information will be expanded annually urtil a full 10-year trend is compiled.

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements



CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2022

Special Revenue Funds

Total
Shop Nonmajor

Municipal L.G.E.A.F. With A Governmental

Road Aid Program Cop Funds

ASSETS
Cash $ 517 5 26,460 $ 20,882 5 47,859
Due from Other Governments 8,129 - - 8,120
Total Assets $ 8,646 $ 26,460 $ 20,882 $ 55,088
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ - 5 - $ - $ -
Total Liabilities $ - $ - $ - % -
FUND BALANCES

Restricted $ 8,648 $ 26,460 $ - $ 35,106
Assigned - - 20,882 20,882
Total Fund Balances % 8,646 $ 26,460 $ 20,882 $ 55,988
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 8,646 $ 26,460 $ 20,882 $ 55,088

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements Page 70



CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

REVENUES
Kentucky Municipal Road Aid
Local Government Economic Assistance
Donations
Interest / Investment Revenue
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES

Current:

Public Works

Community Service
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers Out

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - July 1

Fund Balances - June 30

Special Revenue Funds

Total

Shop Nonmajor
Municipal L.G.E.AF. WithA Governmental

Road Aid  Program Cop Funds
$ 77954 % - % - % 77,954
- 5,213 - 5213
- - 14,203 14,203
144 60 26 230
$ 78098 § 5273 $14229 § 97,600
$ 79,580 $ - 8§ - 3 79,580
- - 5,285 5,285
$ 79580 § - $ 5285 § 84,865
$ (1482) § 5273 % 8944 § 12,735
$ -5 - § - % -
$ (1482) $ 5273 $ 8944 12,735
10,128 21,187 11,938 43,253
$ 8646 § 26460 $20,882 §$ 55,988
Page 71

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements,



CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

ENTERPRISE FUND
(CARROLLTON UTILITIES})

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services:
Utility Charges (Net of Bad Debt Expense)
Connection Fees & Service Charges
Total Charges for Services

Miscellaneous Revenues
Total Cperating Revenues
Operating Expenses:
Cost of Goods Sold
Operation & Maintenance
General & Administrative
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Net Operating Income (LLoss)

Departments

Gas Water Sewer Total
64,235,331 1,768,122 § 2,430,604 68,435,057
73,253 62,670 242,052 377,975
64,308,584 1,831,792 $ 2,672,656 68,813,032
69,307 45,203 57,268 171,778
64,377,891 1,876,995 $ 2,729,924 68,984,810
61,808,747 4508 § - 61,813,255
544,432 850,985 835,053 2,230,470
1,178,576 727,421 821,186 2,727,183
640,231 410,585 978,794 2,029.610
64,171,986 1,003,499 § 2,635,033 68,800,518
205,905 (116,504) % 94,891 184,292
Page 72
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CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
SCHEDULE OF OPERATION & MAINTENANCE, GENERAL &
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES BY DEPARTMENT
ENTERPRISE FUND
(CARROLLTON UTILITIES)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Departments
Gas Water Sewer Total
OPERATION 8 MAINTENANCE

Customer Service $ 65248 $ 79879 § 8,825 $ 153,852
Mains 187,213 149,808 63,649 400,870
Transportation 47,204 45,998 60,970 154,172
Plant and Equipment 235,479 319,367 544,012 1,088,858
Chemicals - 125,756 84,241 209,997
Electric, Light and Power 9,288 130,177 73,356 212,821

Total $ 544432 $850985 $ 835053 $ 2,230,470

GENERAL. 8 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Office Salaries $ 257527 $122174 $ 146895 $ 526,596
Employee Benefits 546,043 383,200 450,785 1,380,028
Payroll Taxes 57,630 45,636 41,222 144,488
Commissioner Fees 7,200 3,600 3,600 14,400
Office Expenses 59,885 686,413 59,288 185,586
Professional and Qutside Services 38,485 57,445 67,110 163,040
insurance 145,969 20,708 20,708 187,385
Other 65,837 28,245 31,678 125,660

Total $1,178,576 $727421 $ 821,186 $ 2,727,183

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

for the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Faderal Grantor/Pass-through
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title

U. 8. Department of Gommaerce:
Economi¢ Davelopment Cluster
Direct Grants
Investments For Public Works and Economic Development Facilities
Total Econcimic Development Clustar
Total U, S, Department of Commerce

U. 8, Department of the Treasury:
Passed through the Kentucky Department of Local Gavernment
COVID-19-Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (CSLFRF)
Total U. S. Department of the Treasury

U. §. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed through the Kentucky Department of Local Governmeant
Community Development Block Grants/State's program and Non-Entitlement Grants in Hawaii
Total U. 8. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Total Expenditures of Fedaral Awards

Federal
Assistance Listing
Number

{Federal CFDA #)}

11.200

21,027

14.228

Pass-through
Entity
Identifying
Number

KY0049

18-026

Total
Federal
Expenditures

8 1070008
$ 1,076,008
$ 1,076,008
s oe05m
3 oevbm
$ 86,289

$ 86,289

$ 1,422,880
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NOTE A:

NOTE B:

NOTE C:

NOTE D:

NOTE E:

CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award
activity of the City of Carroliton, Kentucky under programs of the federal government for the year ended June
30, 2022. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion

of the operations of the City of Carrollton, Kentucky, it is not intended to and does not present the financial
position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the City of Carrollton, Kentucky.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures
are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Non-Cash Awards

The City of Carrollton, Kentucky did not receive any other federal awards in the form of non-cash assistance,
insurance contracts, or loan guarantees for the year ended June 30, 2022,

Passed Through to Sub-Recipients

There were no awards passed through to sub-recipients.
Indirect Cost Rate

City of Carrollton, Kentucky has not elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance. City of Carroliton, Kentucky has not included indirect costs in the schedule.
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RAISOR, ZAPP & WOODS, PSC
Certified Public Accountants
P.O. Box 354 » 513 Highiand Ave « Carrollton, KY 41008

Dennis S. Raisor, CPA . 502-732-6655 ¢ taxes@rzwcpas.com
Jerityn P. Zapp, CPA

Jeffery C. Woods, CPA

Susan A. Dukes, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PEREORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Mayor and Members of the City Council
of the City of Carrollton
Carrollton, Kentucky

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each maijor fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of City of Carrollton, Kentucky as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Carroliton, Kentucky’s basic financial statements and have issued
our report thereon dated March 14, 2023.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Carrollton, Kentucky's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of City of Carrollton, Kentucky's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of City of Carrollton, Kentucky's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than
a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weakness or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Members — Private Companies Practice Section of the American Institute of CPAs Page 76
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The Mayor and Members of the City Council
of the City of Carroliton
Page Two

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Carrollton, Kentucky's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
-agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

QO:&J(?\J, W : Weose PsC

RAISOR, ZAPP & WOODS, PSC
Certified Public Accountants
Carroliton, Kentucky

March 14, 2023

Raisor, Zapp & Woods, PS.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Mayor and Members of the City Council
of the City of Carrollton
Carrolltcn, Kentucky 41008

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited City of Carrollton, Kentucky's compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit
in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of City of Carroliton, Kentucky’'s major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. City of Carrollton, Kentucky's major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

in our opinion, City of Carroliton, Kentucky compiled, in all material respects, with the types of compliance reguirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller Generai of the
United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those
standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of
our report.

We are required to be independent of City of Carrollton, Kentucky and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaired is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of City of Carroilton, Kentucky's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions
of contracts or grant agreements applicable to City of Carrollton, Kentucky's federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on City of Carrollton, Kentucky's compliance
based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absaolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auding standards, Government Auditing Standards, and
the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about City of Carroliton, Kentucky's compliance with the requirements of each
major federal program as a whole.
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To the Mayor and Members of the City Council
Of the City of Carroliton
Page Two

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Audiling Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we:

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

s Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whather due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding City of
Carrollton, Kentucky’'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances,

« Obtain an understanding of City of Carrollton, Kentucky's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal conirol over
compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of City of Carrollton, Kentucky's internal controi over compliance. Accordingly, ne such opinion is expressed.

We are reqguired to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified
during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct,
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in infernal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal conirol over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program
that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance,

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of Compliance secticn above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were
not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
compliance and the results of that testing based on the reguirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose.

on\om,w - Weeple POC,

RAISOR, ZAPP & WOQCDS, PSC
Certified Public Accountants
Carroliton, Kentucky

March 14, 2023

Ralsor, Zapp & Woods, PS.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022
SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
Financial Statements:

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified Yes

Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses Yes

Non-compliance material to financial statements noted Yes

Federal Awards:
Internal control over major programs:

Material weaknesses identified Yes
Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses Yes

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:
Unmodified for all major programs.

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be

X No

_X_ None Reported

X _ No

X _No

_X_None Reported

reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.5516 (a)? _ Yes _X _No
Major Program:

AL Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster
11.300 Investments for Public Works and Econ. Dev, Facilities
Dollar threshold used to distinguish batween type A

and type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? Yes X_No
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CITY OF CARROLLTON, KENTUCKY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

SECTION !l - FINDINGS RELATED TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NONE

SECTION Ill - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS
NONE

SECTION IV — PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS: FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
2021-001 SIZE OF ENTITY AND CHECKING PROCEDURES

Internal controls should be implemented to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and allow timely
preparation of financial data censistent with management assertions. The size of the administrative staff

limits internal control and limits the ability to rotate duties and implement checking procedures. Some
reconciliation procedures were not completed properly. (RESOLVED)

2021-002 FAILURE TO PREPARE A COMPLETE SET OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INCLUDING REQUIRED
NOTE DISCLOSURES

Internal controls should be in place to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
that financial statements and required notes are prepared in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles. City financial statements, including the required disclosures, are prepared as part of
the annual audit. (RESOLVED)
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